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General information

Country of Incorporation and domiclle
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Postal address

Auditor

Level of assurance

Preparer

South Africa

RBN(A) Is defined as a Traditional Council in terms of the
Tradltional Leaderehip and Governance Act, 2005 (Act 2 of
2005), and the Traditional Leadership and Governance
Framework Act, 2003 (Act 41 of 2003).

Provision of community services, education, Infrastructure
developmant, aconomic devalopment, safety and sacurity,
health and social services.

1 Direpotsane Street
Bafokeng Civic Centre
Phokeng

0335

PO Box 1
Phokeng
0335

KPMG Inc
Registored Auditer
85 Empire Road
Parktown
Johannesburg
2183

Private Bag 9
Parkview
Gauteng
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These annual consolidated financial statements have
been auditad in compliance with the applicable requirements
of IFRS Accounting Standards.

The annual consclidated financial statements were
Internally prepared under the suparvision of:
Karabo Rapoo CA{SA)
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Statement of Responsibllity by Supreme Councll

The Supreme Councll is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and falr presentation of the financial
statements of the Royal Bafokeng Natlon (Administration) and its subsidlaries. The financial statements
presented on pages 10 to 106 have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), Accounting Standards and include amounts based on Jjudgements and estimates made t

managemaent.

The Supreme Council consldars that in preparation of the financial statements it has used the most
appropriate accounting policles, consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates, and that all statements of IFRS Accounting Standards that they consider to be applicable ha
been followed. The Supreme Council is satisfied that the information contained in the financlal statements
presents the resulis of operations for the year and the financial position of the group at year end.

The Supreme Council has the responsibllity for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept. The
accounting records should disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the group and to enat
the Supreme Council to ensure that the financial statements comply with relevant legislation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basls of accounting policies applicable i

going concemn. The Supreme Council has no reason to belleve that the group will not be a going concern In
foreseeable future, based on forecasts for 2024 to 2028 and avallable cash resources. These financial

statements support the viabllity of the group.

Supreme Councll's approval of financlal statements

and on Its behalf by:

()

The annual consolldated financial statements for the year ended 3 mber 2023 set out on
ggei 10 Q 106 were approved by the Supreme Councll on | and were signed on

y Modisana

Kgosl Leruo Molotleni
Chalman; Audit Committee

Chairman: Supreme Council
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Supreme Council Report

The Supreme Council (“Council”) presents its report on the activities of Royal Bafokeng Nation (Administration)
(*RBN(A)") and lts subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2023 to the Royal Bafokeng Nation.

1. Nature of Business

The Royal Bafokeng Nation (“RBN") is a community of about 150,000 people, led by Kgos! Leruo Molotlegi.
The REN owns some 1,200 km? of land In the Rustenburg Vailey, in South Afrlca’s North West Province. The
Bafokeng land consists of 29 villages the largest being Phokeng and these villages have been clustered into
five planning regions being Capital, Central, North, North East and South East regicn. This land overlay a
valuable portion of the Bushveld Complex, one of the richest known reserves of platinum group metals and
chrome in the world. The RBN leases portions of this land to some of the world's largest mining companies,
including Impala Platinum, Sibanye Rustenburg Platinum Mine, Royal Bafokeng Platinum and Merafe
Resources.

Royalties paid to the RBN by mining companies and dividends from the investee companies are being used to
uplift the Bafokeng and the surrounding communities, mainly through the Royal Bafokeng Administration
("RBA"). The RBA is an unregistered functlonary of the RBN and accordingly the RBA is part of the same legal
entity as RBN.

In this regard, the RBN's strategy with respect to certain community services, education, infrastructure
development, economic development, safety and security, health and soclal services, developmental
planning, property administration is implemented through the RBA and other ragistered entitles, Community
services provided by the RBN(A) includes the supply of water, construction of roads, schools, clinics,
electrical reticulation, maintenance of roads, collection and disposal of refuse and other community amenities.

The RBN owned area falls under the Jurisdiction of the Rustenburg Local Municipality (‘RLM”). In terms of the
current legislative framework, Bojanala Platinum District Municipality ("BPDM”) exercises jurisdiction over
Rustenburg Local Municipality ("RLM™). The RLM therefore exercise legislative commitments of building
infrastructure and delivering services to the community.

It is on this basis that, the RBN entered into a memorandum of understanding (“MOU") with the BPDM and
the RLM on 12 January 2003, which inter alia provides that the parties agres to corporate In the following
gpheres of delivery; Infrastructural development, health, economic development, tourism, arts and culture and
any other portfolio that the parties may agree from time to time.

REN's vislon statement:
"A relevant and innovative traditional African community In a changing world.”

RBN's mission statement:

"We the Bafokeng, Kgosi, Supreme Council and Makgotia together with those who share our vision and
values, will create an enabling environment for the prosperity of current and future generation by developing
the peopls, the economy and the land.”

"Our strategy for excellence is realised through zero folerance for corruption and through courageous,
innovative leadership rooted in Bafokeng values.”
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Supreme Councll Report

RBN'’s strategy Is underpinned under the key plilars of :

Individual Developmant
A better standard of living for all individuals by improving individual quaslity of life and social wellbeing.

Community Development
Collaboratively building an inclusive traditional communify of which we are proud.

Sustalnabllity and Economic Growth
Respecting resources as treasured assels,achieving Inclusive growth and full employment into the long-term

2. Legal framework and Governance Structures

The Bophuthatswana Traditional Authorities Act, 1978 (Act 23 of 1978) was repealed by the North West
Traditional Leadership and Governance Act, 2005 (Act 2 of 2005) as Amended on 20 March 2007. In terms of
this Act and the Traditional Leadership and Govemance Framework Act, 2003 (Act 41 of 2003) the RBN Is
defined as a Traditional Council.

With the coming into effect of the North West Traditional Leadership and Governance Act, 2006 (Act 2 of
2005) as amended, the RBN was required to reconstitute its Traditional Council accerding to the prescribed

format.
The term of office for the elected and appointed Traditional Council members Is 5 years.

The elected and appointed Traditional Council members (TG Members") were appointed during August 2017
and their term in office should have ended in August 2022, However, due to the amendments to the Traditional
and Khol-San Leadership Act 3 of 2019 the election of new members were delayed and the the previously
appointed members will stilt be in office until the new TC members are appointed. The list of the the current
TC members are stated below: '

Name and Sumame Village Elected/ Appointed
ITA B8
Keorapetse Nameng Lemenong Elected Deceased 29/09/2023
Thabiso Lefyedi Lefaragatihe Elected
Daphne Montsho Masosobane Appointed
Moatihodi Tumagole Phokeng Appointed
Mogari Mokgatle Salema Appointed
NORTH A REGION
Tshepo Mekgoe Luka Elected
Seth Mputle Luka Appolinted
B 1ON
Tshepo Mabule Chaneng Elected
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CE L REGION

Richard Nisimane Kanana Elected
Martha Khuduge Serutube Appointed
NORTH EAST REGION ,

William Mokone Mogakane Elected
Rebecca Modibane Mamerotse Appointed
Katlego Mosito Kopman Appointed
Jennifer Thebyane Tsitsing Appointed

SQUTH EAST REGION
Patrick Phutu Tlapa Elected
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KPMG Inc

KPMG Crescent

85 Empire Road, Parktown, 2193,

Private Bag 9, Parkview, 2122, South Africa
Telephone +27 (0)11 647 7111

Fax +27 (0)11 647 8000
Docex 472 Johannesburg
Web http://www.kpmg.co.za

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Supreme Council of Royal Bafokeng Nation (Administration) and its subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Royal Bafokeng Nation (Administration) and its
subsidiaries (the Group) set out on pages 11 to 106, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policy information

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Royal Bafokeng Nation (Administration) and its subsidiaries and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023, and its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended then ended in accordance with IFRS® Accounting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IFRS Accounting Standards) .

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA
Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code
is consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Other information

The Supreme Council are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the document titled "Royal Bafokeng Nation (Administration) and its subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023", which includes the Supreme Council
Report as required by the Traditional Leadership and Governance Act.
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The other information does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Supreme Council for the consolidated financial statements

The Supreme Council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS® Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IFRS Accounting Standards) and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa,
and for such internal control as the Supreme Council determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Supreme Council are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Supreme Council either intend to liquidate the
group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
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of the group's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Supreme Council.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Supreme Council' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the group, as a basis for forming an opinion on the
group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for the purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Supreme Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG Inc.

DocuSigned by:

Himkita Predious Mabindla

er ZifkitA Mabindla
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor
Director
30 January 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position

Floures in R'000 Notes 2023 2022
Assets

Non-current aseets 46,103,448 43,239,361
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,602,214 1,585,379
Right of use assets 18 9,686 5,234
Other financial asseis -] 23,078,127 21,539,145
Investmant in associates and joint ventures at fair value

through profit or loss 7 21,110,231 19,810,305
Finance lease receivable 9 283 -
Deferred income tax assets 10 303.005 299298
Current assets 10,936,138 10,305,068
Derivatives 11 - 45,738
Trade and other receivables - short=term portion 8 560,852 482,578
Inventories 16 3,363 3,393
Current income tax assets 12 4,894 8,429
Finance lease receivable - short-term portion 9 241 -
Cash investments 14 3,148,620 2,720,081
Cash and cash equivalents 13 7.220,168 7.064 851
Total assets 57,039,684 53,544,429

11
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Consolidated Statement of Financlal Positlon
Figures In RO00 Notes 2023 2022

Equity and liabllitles

Equity

Accumulated funds 45,149,287 40,021,465
Retalned eamings 45,078,887 ‘ ‘ 40,646,467
Reserves 88,600 74,998
Non-controlling interests 8,302 77,622
Total equity 45,157,589 40,960,087
Liabliitles

Non-currerit llabiiitles 11,239,780 11,755,631
Deferred income tax liabllities 10 4,574,271 3,668,766
Employee benefits 16 87,123 60,634
Borrowings 17 1,157,659 2,187,153
Financial lease liabllites 18 4,737 422
Deferred royalty Income 28 5,435,960 5,838,856
Current llablities 842,215 789,711
Employes banefits 16 56,477 47,846
Derlvatives 11 - 138,486
Current Income tax llabllitiss 12 20,103 8,216
Bank overdraft 13 - 6
Bomowings 17 25,697 69,152
Financlal lease liabiliies - short-term portion 18 5,209 5,288
Trade and other payables 19 114,224 101,188
Deferred grant income 28 17,805 18,829
Deferred royalty income - short-term portion 28 402,700 402,700
Total llabllities 11,881,996 12,545,342
Total equity and llabiiitles 57,039,584 53,544,429

12
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Consolidated Statement of Profit of Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Figures in R000 Notes 2023 2022
Revenhue 20 4,449,541 9,165,353
Cost of sales and services rendered (13.410) (11,832
Gross Profit 4,438,131 9,153,521
Administrative Expenses (1,487,418} (1,073,974)
Other income 22 331,195 272,654
Net gains/{losses) 2,647,151 (5,274,714
Other gains 22 2,998 488 879,234
Other losses 22 (61,317 {6,153,848)
Operating profit 6,217,061 3,077,487
Net finance cost {1,307,418) {1,352,395)
Finance income 23 . 841,952 567,111
Finance cost 23 {2,148, 370) {(1,919,506)
Impairment loss for equity accounted investments 21 {605) (32,988)
Share of profits from equity accounted investments 7 270,284 36.140
Profit before tax 5,179,322 1,728,244
Income tax expense / banefit 24 946,102 141,245
Profit for the year from continulng operations 4,233,220 1,889,489
Attributable to:

Equity holder of the parent 4,298,532 1,868,070
Non controlling Interest (63,312) 1419
Profit for the year 4,233,220 1,869,489
Other comprehensive {loss} / income: {5,399) {4,544)

ftems that may not be reclasstfied to profit or loss

Fair value adjustment on financial asset at fair value through

other comprehensive income {5,308) {4,544)
Total comprehenslive profit for the year 4,297,141 1,864,945
Attributable to equity shareholder 4,201,133 1,863,626
Aftributable to non-controlling interest 6.008 1419

13
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows _
Figures in 1000 Motes 2023 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash used In operations 29 {760,029) (523,452)
Interest paid {147,100 (140,064)
Income tax paid 12 | 366,659) {260,930
Net cash used in operating activities (1,273,788) (924,446)
Cash flow from Investing activitles

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant & equipment 30 65

Finance lease receipts 317 49

Acqulsition of property, plant & equipment (80,818) (47,401)
Acquisition of Ethos {1,138} {1,048)
Acquisition of Visio Capital Investment {464,500) -

Dividend received from RIM (Associate) 5,945 6,400

Acquisition of financial assets (838,132} (2,724,248)
Proceeds from sale of Investments at falr value 455,805 562,703

Proceeds from sale of RB Plats Shares 1,276,708 -

Repayment of loan from assoclates 2216 60,384

Repayment of shareholder loan - 3,124

Acquisition of investment at fair value - (5,486)
Purchase of investment in associate at fair value through profit and loss {54,880) (285,622)
Dividend received 1,578,071 1,854,183

Interest received 841,952 558,466

Cash received on behalf of shareholder 4,091 3602

Deferred consideration received - 5,664,246

Proceeds from disposaf of associates and joint ventures - 213,730

NEPI Retum of capital 54,878 -

Decrease In maturlty investment 426,539 (634,450)
Net cash generated from Investing activities 2,354,108 5,228,686

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (1,024,771) (997,570)
Repayment of shareholders loan - non-controlling interest - {2.082)
Redemption of IDC preference shares 18,000 -

Payment of lease liabllities (5,442) 5,112
Net cash utilised in financial activities (1,012,213) (1,004,774)
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 68,107 3,200,484

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7,064,851 3,773,703

Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances 87,210 (8,316)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7,220,168 7,084,851

15
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies

2.1

2141

21.2

213

General Information

Royal Bafokeng Nation ("RBN"} is a traditional councll with a Universitas Personarum. The North West
Traditional Leadershlp and Govemance Act, 2005 (Act 2 of 2005) governs its existence and
governance. The Act, In addition to several other pieces of legislation affecting the RBN's operaticns,
is not prescriptive as to the accounting govenance and reporting requirements of the REN. The
consolidated financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards. The Supreme Counclt is of the opinlon that the consolidated financlal statements

thus prepared will not mislead the users of the consolidated financial statements, The principal
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financlal statements are set out in note 2 below.

Materlal accounting policles

The principal accounting policles applied in the preparation of this consclidated financial statements
are set out in detail in the relevant notes. The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise staied.

Baesls of preparation
Compliance with IFRS Accounting Standards

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concemn basis in accordance
with, and in compliance with, IFRS Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") interpretations issued and effective at the time

of preparing these annual financial statements.

This consoiidated financial statements complies with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
Intemnational Accounting Standards Board (IASB), requirements of the SAICA Financlal Reporting
Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and the Financial Reporting Pronouncements
as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council.

Historical convention

The consoclidated financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost conventien, unless
otherwise stated in the accounting policies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting
policies set out in detail in the relevant notes.

Functonal and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in South African Rands (Rands), which ie the

Royal Bafokeng Nation {(Administration) and its subsidiaries ("Group") functional and presentation
currency. Except stated otherwise, the amounts in the financial statements are rounded to Rmillion.
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Slignificant Judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financia! statements in conformity with IFRS requires management,
from time to time, to make judgements, estimates and assumpticns that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and
associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are believed fo be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptlons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting esiimates are
recognised in the period In which the estimates are revised and in any future perlods affected.

The resulting accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions will, by definltion, seldom equal the
related actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant sk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financlal year are addressed in detail in the relevant notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Going concemn

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concemn assumption. This
assumption presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation
of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the
ordinary course of business.

Forelgn currency translation
Transactions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevaliing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchangs
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at yearend
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencles are recognleed

in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities dencminated in foreign currency classified as avallable
for sale, are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the securlty. Translation differences related to

.changes in amortisad cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amounts are

recognised in cther comprehensive income.

Transiation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabifitles such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as aquities classified as available for
sale, are included in cther comprehensive income.
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Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impalrment. Cost Includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Land is not depreciated.

Work-in-progress is not depreciated. These relates to the work or construction not yet completed at
year end and will be depreciated when the work or construction is completed and ready for use.
Depreciation is calculated as indicated below and approximates the fellowing:

Item Average useful life In years and
Buildings 5-30 years (straight line)

Plant and machinery 5-30 years (straight line)

Office and computer equipment 3-5 years (stralght line)

Furniture and fittings 4-10 years (straight line)

Vehicles and equipment years (straight line)

Capitalised lease improvements 6 years (stralght line)

Computer Software 8 years (straight line)

Drones 4 years (straight line)

Depraciation perlods are assessed annually and adjusted if and where appropriate.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Asset liyes

The group’s assets, are depreciated over their expected useful lives which are reviewed annually
to ensure their appropriateness. In assessing useful lives, technological innovation, product life cycle
physical condltion of the assets and maintenance programme are taken into consideration.

Impairment

An impairment review of property, plant and equipment is carried out when there Is an indication that
these assets may be impaired by comparing the carrying amount thereof fo its recoverable amount.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the Impairment charge will reduce
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment to its recoverable amount. The adjusted
carrying amount is depreciated over the remalning useful life of property, plant and equipment.

When an impalrment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment lose been
recognised for the asset In prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss Is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Investment In subsidiaries
Subsldiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group
controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are
deconsolidatad from the date that control ceases.

Disposal of subsidiarles

When the group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is remeasurad to its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financlal asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised In other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Significant subsidiary

Detailed Information on the group's significant subsidiaries is stated below:

Name of entity Country of Incorporation
Roysl Bafokeng Development Trust South Africa
Royal Bafokeng Heldings South Africa

Royal Bafokeng Natlon Development Trust (‘“RBNDT") Is the principal subsidiary of Royal Bafokeng
Nation (Administration) {"RBN/A") and is respensible for the management and develcpment of the
commercial assets of RBN/A. This is malnly done through Royal Bafokeng Heldings (Pty) Ltd
(“RBH"), wholly owned subsidiary of the RBNDT.

Financlal instruments

Financial instruments held by the group are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9
Financlal Instruments. Broadly, the classification possibillties, which are adopted by the group,
as applicable, are as follows:

Financial assets which are equity instruments:

« Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss; or

« Designated at fair value through profit or loss. (This classification option can enly be applied when
it eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch).
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Financial Instruments {continued)

Derivatives which are not part of a hadging relationship:
s Mandatorily at fair vatue through profit or loss.

Financial liabllities which are at amortised costs; or

« Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss;(This applies to liabilities which are held for trading)or

« Designated at falr value through profit or loss. (This classification option can only be applled when
it eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch; the liabilities forms part of a group of
financlal instruments managed on a fair value basis; or it forms part of a contract containing an
embedded derivative and the entira contract is designated as at fair value through profit or loss).

Below are the specific accounting policies for the classification , recognition and measurement of
each type of financial instruments held by the group.

Trade and other receivables

las ion
Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, VAT and prepayments are classified as

financial assets subseguently measured at amortised costs(note 8).

They have been classified in this manner because their contractual terms give rise, on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding,
and the company's business model Is to coflect the contractual cash flows on trade and other

receivables.

Recognition
Trade and other receivables are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the receivables. They are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value pius transacticn

costs, if any. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the recsivable initially, minus principal repayments,
plus cumulative amortisation (interest) using the effective interest methed of any differance between
the Initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.

Application of the effective intergst method
For recalvables which contain a significant financing component, interest income is calculated using
the effactive interest method, and is included in profit or loss in finance income {note 23).

The application of the effective interest method to calculate interest income on trade recelvables is

dependent on the credit risk of the receivable as follows:

» The effective Interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the recsivable, provided the
receivable is not credit Impaired. The gross carrying amount is the amortised cost before adjusting
for a loss allowance;
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Financlal Instruments {(continued)
Trade and other recelvables (contihued)

« If a recelvable is a purchased or ariginated as credit-impaired, then a credit-adjusted effactive
interest rate Is applied to the amortised cost in the determination of interest. This treatment does not
change over the life of the receivable, even If It is no longer cradit-impaired;

» If a receivable was not purchased or originally credit-impaired, but it has subsequently become
credit-impaired, then the effective interest rate Is applied to the amortised cost of the recelvable in
the determination of Interest. If, in subsequent periods, the receivable is no longer credit impaired,
then the interest calculation reverts to applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount.

The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other receivables,
excluding VAT and prepayments. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date.

The group measures the loss allowance for trade and other receivables at an amount equal to
Iifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL), which represents the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the recalvable.

Measurement and recognlfion of expected credit losses

The group makes use of a provision matrix as a practical expedient to the determination of expected
credit losses on trade and other receivables. The provision matrix is based on historic credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general eccnomic conditions and an
assessment of both the current and forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
the time value of money, where appropriate.

An impairment gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables, through use of a loss allowance account. The Impair-
ment loss is included in administrative expenses in profit or loss as a movement in credit loss
allowance (note 21).

Write off pollcy

The group writes off a receivable when there is information indicating that the counterparly is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Receivables writtan
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the company recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Cradit risk
Detalls of credit risk are included in the trade and other receivables note (note 8) and the financial

instruments and risk management note {note 33)
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24.2

Financlal Instruments (continued)
Trade and other recelvables (continued)

Any gains or losses arising on the derecognition of trade and other receivables Is included in profit or
loss In the derecognition gains (losses) on financial assets at amortised cost line item (note 22},

Loans and receivables

Inijti niflon

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payment periods
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and recelvables comprise trade and other recelivables
in the statement of financlal position excluding prepaid tax, prepaid expenses and VAT refund.
Environmental trust deposit and cash and cash equivalents form part of loans and receivables.

Loans and recelvables are initially measured at fair value. They are included in current assets except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date, these are classified as non-current
aseets.

Trade recelvables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision made for impairment of
trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence (e.g. when amounts are overdue for
a slgnificant period of time) that the Group will nat be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the recoverable amount, belng the present value of expected cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rates. Significant financial difficulties of the debtors,
probabilities that the debtors will enter bankruptcy, default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivables are impaired. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income as an administrative expense.

] nt suyreme

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Tha
gains or losses in the changes in the value of the loan and other receivables are classified in the
income statement under finance cost or income.

The amount of the provision is the difference between the assets carrying amount and the
recoverable amount, being the present value of expected cash flow, discounted at the original
effective interest rates. When a trade receivable is uncollected, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are taken to
other income In the Income statement.

Prepald expenses are Initially recorded at cost and subsequently amortised through to the income
statement when the service is received. Value Added Tax (VAT) refunds are initially recorded at cost
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Financlal instruments (continued)
Loans and receivables {continued)

and subsequently realised when the cash is raceived from the South African Revenue Service
(SARS).

ritical & nting & sa umpti
The group follows the guidance of IFRS 9 to determine when a financial asset is impaired. The
determination requires significant judgement. In making the judgement, the group evaluates, among
other factors, the history of defaults by the debtors and the financial position of the debtor.

Investments In equity instruments

Classification
Investments in equity instruments are presented in note 8. They are classified as mandatorily at fair
value through profit or loss. Associates and joint ventures are equity accounted for at group level.

Investments in equity Instruments are subsequently measured at falr value with changes In fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Fair value gains or losses recognised are included in fair value gains or
losses (note 22)

Dividends raceived on equity investments are recognised In profit or loss when the company's right to
recalve the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividands are included in other income.

Falr value gains or losses are included in fair value gain or loss.

Associates are all entlties over which the company has significant Influence but not control or jeint
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and others,
except those whose Special Purpose Vehicle("SPVs) are classified as venture capltal organisations
are carried at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11, investments in joint
arangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations each investor, rather than the lega) structure of the jeint arrangement. The
Group has in the prior year assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, except those whose SPVs
are classified as venture caplital organisations are carried at fair value through profit or ioss.

The SPVs that hold these investments qualify for the venture capital exemption and therefore the

investments are carried at fair value through profit and loss with changes in the fair value recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income In the perlod of change.
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Financial Instruments (continued)
Investments In equity instruments (continued)

Under the equity method, the investment Is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount Is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss and movements in
other comprehensive incoma of the Investee after the date of acquisition. The investor's share of the
profit or loss and movements in other comprehensive Income are presented In the statement of profit
or loss or statement of other comprehensive based on the investes's annual financlal statements.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

Changes in the fair value of associates carried at fair value through profit and loss are recognised in
the income statement in the period of change.

If the ownership interest in an assoclate is reduced but significant influence Is retained, cnly a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised In other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income, and Its equity movements, recognised directly in equity as "other reserves” with a
coresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the group's share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds Its interest in the associate, the group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impalred. If this is the case, the group calcuiates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and Its canying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit/(loss) of assoclates in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the group and its
associate are recognised in the group's financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor's interests in the assoclates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an Impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Financlal Habllitles

Loans from group companies, bank overdraft and trade and other payables are classified as financial
liabliiies subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial llabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisicns
of the liability. The financial liabilities are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value pius transaction
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24.5

Financlal Instruments (continued)

Financial llabilitles (continued)

costs, if any.

They are subssquently measured at amortised cost using the effectlve interest method.

The effective intarest method Is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant perlod. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter perlod, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest expense, calculated on the effective interest method, is included in profit or loss in finance
costs.

Financial liabiliies expose the group to liquidity risk and interest rate risk. Refer to note 32 for details
of risk exposure and management thereof.

Trade and other payables

Classlfication

Trade and other payables (note 19), exciuding VAT and amounts recaived in advance, are classified
as financlal liabliities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Recognition and measuram
They are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions, and are
measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interast method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of alfocating interest expense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (inciuding all fees and points paid or raceived that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and cther premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter perlod, tc the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

If trade and other payables contain a significant financing component, and the effective interest
method results in the recognition of Interest expense, then it is included in profit or loss in finance
costs (note 23).
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24.6

Financlal Instruments (continued)
Trade and other payables (continued)

Trade and other payables expose the company to liquidity risk and possibly to interest rate risk. Refer
to note 32 for details of risk exposure and management thereof.

Financial liablliies at falr value through profit or loss

Clagsification
Financial tiabilities which are held for trading are classified as financial liabilities mandatorily at fair

value through profit or loss.

The group, does, from time to time, designate certain financial liabilities as at fair value through profit
or loss. The reason for the designation is to reduce or significantly eliminate an accounting mismatch
which would aceur If the instruments were not classified as such; or if the instrument forms part of &
group of financial instruments which are managed and evaluated on a falr value basis in accordance
with a documented management strategy; or in cases where It forms part of a contract containing an
embedded derivative and IFRS 9 permits the entire contract to be measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Recognition and measurement
Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised when the company bacomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. They are measured, at initial recognition and
subsequently, at fair value. Transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value gains or losses recognised on investments at fair value through profit or loss are included
in fair value through profit or loss {note 22).

For financial llabilites designated at fair value through profit or loss, the portion of fair value
adjustments which are attributable to changes in the company's own credit risk, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity in the reserve for valuation of liabilities,
rather than in profit or loss. However, If this treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss, then that portion is alsc recognised in profit or foss.

Interest pald on financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is includad in financa costs
(note 23)

Derecognition
The changes in fair value attrlbutable to changes In own credit risk which accumulated in equity for

financial liabilities which were designated at fair value through profit or loss are not reclassified to
profit or loss. Instead, they are transferred directly to retained earnings on derecognition.
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2.4 Financlal instruments {continued)

24.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at carrying amount which is deemed to be fair value. These
are initially and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Cash equlvalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible te known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. The company's
analysis is based on the following three components:

« short term, highly liquid;

» readily convertible to known amounts; and

« insignificant risk of changes in value.

The maturity period used for classification is measured from date of classification and not raporting
date.

short-term cash commitments. For example, is the instrument a short-term investment or is it used
to pay operating expenses and day-to-day activities.

M rk nds
Investments in money market funds are classified as either cash or cash equlvalents or equity
Investments based on the following criteria:
» if the amount of cash that will be received is known with a high degree of certainty at the time of the
inltial investment;
» an assessment indicating the following is satisfied:
- substantially all of the money market funds’ investments qualify individually as cash and cash
equivalents;
» the fund poficies only permit investments in cash and cash equivalents with some of the following
policies, amongst others:
- constant net asset value with limitations on volatility (0.5%);
- returns benchmarked fo short-term money market interest rates;
- highest credit rating;
- Investment In high-quality instruments, typicaliy short term, with high liquidity and a maximum
weighted average maturity of a few weeks (typically 60 — 90 days);
- highly diversified portfolio; and
- affillation to or membership of a money market association that ensures maintenance of high
standards in its code of practice.

Money market funds that have a constant net asset value of 1:1 or insignificant risks of changes in
value are classified as cash and cash equivalents and measured In terma of IFRS 9 amortised cost
or falr value through profit or loss. If the cash and cash equivalent definition is not met, money
market funds are classified as equity or debt instruments measured In terms of IFRS 9 amortised
cost or fair value through profit or loss.
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24.7

2.6.1

Financlal Instruments (continued)

‘Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

inancial ass
The group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financlal asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liabllity for amounis it may have to pay.
If the company retains substantially all the riske and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the company continues to recognise the financlal asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

Einancial liabllities

The group derecognises financial liabitities when, and only when, the company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabllties assumed, is recognised In profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes
of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, bank overdraft and other short-term highly liquld investments with original maturities of
three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings and under current liabllities on the
statement of financial position.

Investments in money market funds relate to Investments in shares of liquidity funds of which the
underlying investments have maturities of up to one year. The shares in these funds are callable
daily.

Finance lease recelvable

Finance leases

They are presented as lease recelvables on the statement of financial position.

The interest rate implicit in the jease is used to measure the net investrent In the lease. If the
interest rate Implicit in a sublease cannot be readily determined for a sublease, then the discount rate
used for the head lease (adjusted for any initial direct costs associated with the sublease) is used to

measure the net investment in the sublease.

The interest rate implicit in the lease is defined in a manher which causes the initial diract costs to be
included in the initial measurement of the net investment in the lease.
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Finance lease recelvable (continued)
Finance leases (continued)

Leass payments included In the measurement of the net investment in the lease comprise the

following:

» fixed lease payments, Including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives payable;

» variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, inifially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date,

« the amount expected to be receivable by the group from the lesses, a party related to the lessee or
a third party unrelated to the group under residual value guarantees (to the extent of third parties,
this amount is only included if the party is financially capable of discharging the obligations under
the guarantee),

« the exercise price of purchase options, If the lessee is reascnably certaln to exercise the option;

» penalties for early termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an aption to
terminate the lease.

The group recognises finance income over the lease term, based on a pattern that reflects a
constant periodic rate of retum on the net investment in the lease. Finance Income racognised on
finance leases |s included in finance income in profit or loss (hote 23).

The group applies the impairment provisions of IFRS 9 to lease receivables.
Exposure to credit risk

Finance lease receivables inherently exposes the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group
will ineur financial loss if counterparties fail to make payments as they fall due.

In order to mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults the group only deals with reputable
counterparties with consistent payment histories. Credit risk is mitigated by holding the leased
assets as collateral. Each counterparty is analysed individually for creditworthiness before terms and
conditions are offered. The analysis involves making use of information submitted by the
counterparties as well as external bureau data (where available). The exposure to credit risk and the
creditworthiness of counterparties is continuously menitored.

Finance lease receivables are subject to the impairment provisions of IFRS ¢ Financlal Instruments,
which requires a loss allowance to be recognised for all exposures to credit risk. The loss allowance
for finance lease receivables is calculated based on twelve-month expected losses if the credit risk
has not Increased significantly since initial recognition. In cases where the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition the loss allowance is calculated based on lifetime expacted credit
losses. The loss allowance is updated to sither fwelve-month or lifetime expected credit loases at
each reporting date based on changes in the credit risk since Initial recognition, If a lease Is
considered to have a low credit risk at the reporting date, then it ls assumed that the credlt risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition.
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2.5.3

2.7

Finance lease recelvable {continued)
Exposure to credit risk {continued)

In determining the amount of expected credit losses, the group has taken into account any historic
default experience, the financial positione of the counterparties as well as the future prospects in the
Industries in which the counterparties operate or are employed. Thig information has been obtained
from the counterparties themselves, as well as from economic reports, financial analyst reports and
various external sources of actual and forecast data and is applied to estimate a probability of
occurring as well as estimating the loss upon defauit.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
current reporting period. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the leases
as presented above.

Exposure to Interest rate risk

Refer to note 33 Financial instruments and financial risk management for detalls of interest rate risk
management for finance lease recelvables.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabillties are provided In full, using the liability method, temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financlal reporting purposes. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted before the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liabllity is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it Is probable that future taxable profits will be
available, against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of inventories
comprises all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition and is assigned by using the weighted average
cost formula. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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2.8.1

291

Employes beneflts

The Group operates various post-employment schemes, including defined contribution pension plans
and post-employment medical plans.

Short-term benefit

Shori-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basls and are expensed
as the related service is provided.

Share hased payments
Long Term Incentlve Scheme
Cash-settled share based compensation plans

The services acquired and the liability incurred are measured at fair value for cash settled share
based payments. Until the liability is settled, it is measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
perlod and at the date of settiement, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for
the period.

The participation in the scheme is fimited to executives and senior management individuais. The
valus of the refsrence shares is the NAV of the RBH porifello based on the fair value of the assels
net of deferred capital gain as at year-end divided by 100 000 000 units. The conditional awards vest
three years from when they were granted and the share appraciation rights (SARs) vests three years
from when they were granted but will have a two-ysar period after the vesting date to exercise
vested SARs. A Black Scholes model was used to measure the LTI and the volatility Index was
determined by assessing the volatility of the listed assets.

Nil Cost Option Awards under the Scheme are subject to the participant belng in continued
employment for 3 years vesting period to receive 60% of the awards and 4 year vesting to receive
the remaining 40% of the awards.

The group operates one cash-settied long-term incantive plan, which allows for the award of 3 types
of LTI insruments:

« appreciation rights in the form of SARs;

« full value shares in the form of conditional awards; and

« nil cost options (NCOs), which are full shares subject to performance condlitions.

The Plan is a notional plan in that Participants will not be entitled to acquire actual shares, but the
Plan will enable a Participant to receive future cash amounts subject to the conditions of the Plan.

The SARs Awards provide particlpants with a conditional rights to share in the Increase in value of a
fixed number of SARs over the vesting period and are subject to tenure performance conditions, the
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2.9 Share based payments (continued)
291 Long Term Incentive Schems (continued)
Cash-settied share based compensation plans {continued)

value which will be paid in cash. Participants will not be required to pay for the grant of a SAR or to
make any payment on vesting. Therefore, benefits dellverad under the SAR awards will be at no
costs to the pariicipants.

The Conditional Awards provides participants with a conditlonal rights to phantom shares to a
participation on the vesting date, subject to tenure requirements, the value which will be pald in cash.
Participants will not be required to pay for the grant of an award or to make any payment on vesting.
Thersfore, benefits deliverad under the Conditlonal awards will be at no costs to the particlpants.

SARs and NCOs will be subject to financial and non financial performance conditions and continued
employment as well as a dividend gatekeeper.

Conditional shares will be subject fo continued employment and the dividend gatekeeper.

210 Borrowings

Financial liabillties which are held for trading are classified as financial liabilities mandatorily at fair
value through profit or loss.

The group, does, from time to time, designate certain financial liabilities as at fair value through
profit or loss. The reason for the deslignation Is to reduce or significantly eliminate an accounting
mismatch which would occur If the instruments were not ciassified as such; or if the instrument
forms part of a group of financiai instruments which are managed and evaluated on a fair value
basis in accordance with a documented management strategy; or in cases where It forms part of
a contract containing an embedded derivative and IFRS 9 permits the entire contract to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans from shareholder and financial liabilities are classified as financial liabllities and loans from
related parties subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities and loans from related parties are recognised when the company bacomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the loan. The loans are measured, at initial recogniticn, at fair
value plus transaction costs, If any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method.

The effective interest methed is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate
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211

Borrowings (continued)

that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or

received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) threugh the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
perlod, to the amortised cost of a financial liabllity.

Interest expense, calculated on the effective interest method, Is included in profit or loss in finance
costs (note 28).

Financial llabilities and loans from related parties expose the company to liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. Refer to note 32 for details of risk exposure and management thereof.

Refer to the "derecognition" section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related
to derecognition.

Financial lease llabliities and right of use assets

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
« fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liabllity (or right-of-use asset). The related payments are recognised as an expense in the
pericd incurred and are included in operating expenses.

The Isase liabllity Is presented as a separate line item on the statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liabllity {(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect
jease payments made. Interest charged on the lease liability is included in finance costs (note 23).

The group's obligstions under leases are securad by the lessor's charge over the leased assets.
Refer to nota 8.

The group assesses whether a contract is, of contains, a lease at the inception of the contract.

A contract |8, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

In order to assess whather a contract is, or contains, a lease management determines whether the
asset under consideration is “identified”, which means that the asset is either explicitly or implicitly
specified in the contract and that the supplier does not have a substantial right of substitution
throughout the period of use. Once management has concluded that the contract deals with an
identified asset, the right to control the use thereof is considered. To this end control over the use of
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2.1

21141

2.11.2

Financial lease liabllites and right of use assets (continued)

an identified asset only exlsts when the group has the right to substantially all of the economic
benefits from the use of the asset as well as the right to direct the use of the asset.

In circumstances where the determination of whether the contract Is, or contains, a lease requires
significant judgement, the relevant disclosures are provided In the “significant judgements and
sources of estimation uncertainty” section of these accounting policies.

Group as lessoe

A lease liabillty and corresponding right-of-use asset are recognised at the lease commencament
date for all lease agreements for which the group is a lesses, except for short-term leases of 12
months or less, or leases of low-value assets. For these leases the group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattem in which economic benefits from
the leasad asset are consumed.

The various lease and non-lease components of contracts containing leases are accounted for
separately, with consideration being allocated to each lease component on the basls of the relative
stand-alone prices of the lease components and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components (where non-lease components exist).

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use asseis are presented as a separate line item on the statement of financial position.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

« the initlal amount of the corresponding lease liability;

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement date;

« any Initial direct costs incurred;

» any estimated costs to dismantie and remove the underiying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, when the group incurs an obligation to do so, unless these costs
are incurred to produce inventories; and

» less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreclation and
impaimaent losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreclated over the shorter period of the lease term and useful lifa of the
underlying asset using the straight-line method. However, if a lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the group expects to exercise a
purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying
asset. Depreciation starts at the commencement date of a lease.
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2.11

2.11.2

211.3

2.12

Financlal lease llabliities and right of use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

For right-of-use assets which are depreciated over their useful lives, the useful lives are determined
consistently with items of the same class of property, plant and equipment. Refer to the accounting
policy for property, plant and equipment for details of useful lives.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each
reporting year. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for
prospectively as a change In accounting estimate.

The depreclation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless [t is Included in the
carrying amount of another aaset.

Group as lessor

Leases for which the group is a leesor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantiafly all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Lease
classification is made at inception and is only reassessed if there is a lease modification.

When the group is an Intermediate lessor it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two

separate contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the

right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
group applies the exemption described previously, then it classifies the sublease as an operating

lease.

The various lease and non-lease components of confracts contalning leases are accounted for
separately, with consideration being allocated by applying IFRS 15.

The group leases several assets, including the office building, computer equipment (including
printers, binders and laptops) and a storage facility. The average lease term Is two years
{2022: three years).

The group adopted IFRS16 for the first time in the 201¢ financlal year. During the 2023 financial year,

there was a lease modification on the building lease. The building lease (together with the non-lease
itams) was extended by 22 months from 28 February 2024 to 31 December 2025.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables represent liabiltties for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of

financial year which are unpald. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
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2.14

2.14.1

Trade and other payables {continued)
within 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade payables are Initially carried at the fair value of the consideration agreed for goods or services
that have been received or supplied and invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier. Subsequently,
they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Rental income

Rental income is obtained from the rental of various assets to varlous leases. The rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

i
Royalty income Is derived from the leasing of the land cwned by the RBN to mining entities mining in
the RBN lease area. The royalty income is recognised as revenue when the income accrues to RBN
based on the contractual terms.

Revenue from sale of producis

Accommodation revenue is recognised overtime as the guests use the rcoms. Food and beverages
are recognised at a point in time when the foods and beverages are sold to the customer. Other
revenue is recognised as the performance of service is provided to the customer.

D in

Rovalty income received in advance is presented as a liabllity *deferred royalty iIncome” and is
amortised to the Income statement as royalty income on a straight line basia over the period

(32 years) the contract. The difference between the deferred royalty income amortised and the fair
value of the deferred royalty income on recognition date is recognised as a national interest and
debited to finance cost.

Divi in e
Dividends are received from financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
and at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group recognises dividend income when the Group's right to receive payment is established.
This is on the last day to trade for listed shares and on the date of declaration for unlisted shares.

Impairment loss
For non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets, are reviewed for impairment losses
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
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214.2

Impairment loss (continued)
For non-financial assets (continued)

recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, that is, the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and
value In use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financlal assets, other than goodwill that
suffered impairment, are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment of financlal assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there Is objective evidence that a
financial asset or Group of financial assets Is impaired. A financial asset or a Group of financial
assets are impaired and Impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the Initial recognition of the asset
(a 'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or Group of financlal assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may inciude indications that the debtors or a Group of debtors is
experiencing significant financiat difficulty, default or delinguency In interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financlal reorganisation, and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decreasa In the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or sconomic conditions that correlate with defaults.

gets carried mortise
For loans and recelvables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

Interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset Is reducad and the amount of the loss is recognised in the

consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an

instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group follows the guidance of IFRS 9 to determine when a financial asset is Impaired. The
determination requires significant judgement. In making the judgement, the Group evaluates the
duration and the extent to which the falr value of a financial asset is less than its cost, and the
financial health of the near-term business outlook of the investee, including factors such as industry
and sector parformance, changes in technology, and operational and financing cash flows.
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2.16

217

Other Incomoe

Other income is racognised on an accrual basie when It Is both probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of the revenue can be
measured reliably.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where the tems are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains or logses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies, are
racognised in other income.

Net finance cost

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding
and the effective rate over the pericd of maturity, when it is probable that such income will accrue to
the Group.

Borrowing costs are charged to interast expense.
Income tax expense

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current perioed's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive Income or directly in equity. in this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax comprises tax payable calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the reporting
date.

Critical accounting estimates and a'ssumptlons

Significant judgement is required In determining the provision for Income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticlpated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters Is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the Income tax
and deferred tax provisions In the period in which such determinations are made,

38



Docusign Envelope ID: 131A0B97-B628-487B-A2DF-DD677320DAF3

ROYAL BAFOKENG NATION (ADMINISTRATION) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Summary of Materlal Accounting Policies

2.18

2.18.1

2.18.2

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financlal risks: liquidity risk, credit risk, market risk and
commodity price risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpradict-
ability of the financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its financlal commitments in any location
or currency. This rigk is minimised through the holding of cash balances and sufficient available
borrowing facilities (refer to Note 18). In addition, detailed cash flow foraecasts are regularly prepared
and reviewed by the Finance Department and the Board. The cash needs of the Group are managed
according to its requirements. The following table details the Group's contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been compiled based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financlal liabllities from the earliest date on which the Group can be required to repay the liability. The
cash flows include both the principal and interest payments.

Credit risk

Cradit risk |s the risk of financial loes to the group If a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument falis to meet its contractual obligations.

The group is exposed to credit risk on loans to group companies at fair value through profit or loss,
preference share Investments at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other recelvables, finance
lease receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loan commitments and financial guarantees.

Credit risk for exposure other than those arising on cash and cash equivalents, are managed by
making use of credit approvals, limits and monitoring. The group only deals with reputable
counterparties with consigtent payment historles. Sufficient collateral or guarantees are also
obtained when necessary. Each counterparty is analysed individually for creditworthiness before
tarms and conditions are offered. The analysis involves making use of information submitted by
the counterparties as well as external bursau data (where available). Tha exposure to credit risk
and the creditworthiness of counterparties are continuously monitored.

Credit risk exposure arising on cash and cash equivalents is managed by the group through dealing
with well-established financial institutions with high credit ratings.

Credit loss allowances for expected credit losses are recognised for all debt instruments, but
exclude those measured at fair value through profit or loss. Credit loss allowance are also
recognised for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts if not designated through
profit or loss.
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2.18.3

2184

2.18.5

2.18.8

Financlal risk management {continued)
Foreign exchange risk

The Group has direct exposure to foreign currency risk through foreign denominated invoices
Incurred during the year and accruals raised at year-end.

The portfolic is exposed to foreign currency risk through foreign investments held by its underlying
SPVs.

Price risk

The group through Its subsldiaries is exposed to equity securities price risk because of the invest-
ments it holds that are classified on the consolidated statement of financial position as elther
available-for-sale investment or at fair value through profit and loss. To manage the risk, the Group
diversifies its portfolic. The Group's investments in equities of other entities are publicly traded and
are Included as part of the All Share index (ALSI).The portfolio’s foreign listed equities are publicly
traded and are included as part of the Financial Times Stock Exchange (FTSE).

Capital risk management

The Group's objective when managing capltal (which includes share capital, liabilities, working capiial
and cash and cash equlvalents) is to maintain a flexible capital structure that reduces the cost of
capital to an acceptable level of rigk and to safeguard the group’s abillty to continue as a going
concern while taking advantage of strategic opportunities in order to maximise stakehclder returns

sustainably.

The Group manages capital siructure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes In economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain the capital
structure the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid fo the shareholder, return capital o the
shareholder,repurchase shares cumrently issued, issue new shares, issue new debt, issue new debt
to replace existing debt with different characteristics and/or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group measures capital through its debt covenant ratios which are disclosed in note 34.

Fair value estimation

The group has adopted IFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the statement of
financial position at fair value and this requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy l.e. Quoted price, inputs other than quoted prices that
are based on the observabie data and inputs that are based on unobservable inputs.
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2.18  Financlal risk management (continued)

2.18.6 Falr value estimation {continued}

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at falr value by valuation methed. The
differant levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for the identical assets or liabillties.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or llability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs). The assumptions relating to the level 3 valuations have been included

in the applicable notes.
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3. New Standarde and Interpretations

341

Standards and Interpretations effective and adopted In the current year

In the current year the company has adopted the following standards and Interpretations that are

effectlve for the current financial year.

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Impact Analysis Expected Impact
IAS 8 Accounting policies, |01 January 2023 |Definition of Accounting Estimates: No material
change in accounting The amendments clarify how companies |impact as there
estimates and errors. should distinguish changes in accounting |were no changes
policies from changes in accounting in accounting
estimates, by replacing the definition of a |estimates in the
change in accounting estimates with a current year.

new definition of accounting estimates.
Under the new definltion, accounting
estimates are “monetary amounts in
financlal statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. The
requirements for recognising the effect of
change in accounting prospectively
remain unchanoed.

The amendment
will be considered
for any future
changes in
accounting pollcies
and estimates.

IAS 12 Income Taxes

01 January 2023

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabllitles arising from a Single
Transaction:

The amendment clarifles how a
company accounts for income tax,
including deferred tax, which represents
tax payable or recoverable in the future.
In specified circumstances, companies
are exempt from recognising deferred
tax when they recognise assets or
liabllities for the first time. The aim of the
amendments is to reduce diversity in the
reporting of deferrad tax on leases and
decommissloning obligations, by

when the exemption from clarifying
recognising deferred tax would apply to
the initial recoanition of such items.

The impact of

the amendment

is not material as no
new leases were
entered into.

IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements

01 January 2023

Classlification of Llabllities as Current
of Non-current:

Narrow scope amendments to IAS 1 to
clarify how to classify debt and other
liabllities as current or non-current.
Disclosure of Accounting Policles:

The impact of the
amendment is not
material.
Management has
assessed the
material accounting

42




Docusign Envelope ID: 131A0B97-B628-487B-A2DF-DD677320DAF3

ROYAL BAFOKENG NATION {ADMINISTRATION) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 Decomber 2023

Summary of Materlal Accounting Policles

31 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year (continued)

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:  Impact Analysls Expacted Impact
The amendment requires companies o |policles and the
disclose their material accounting accounting policies
policy information rather than their for Intangible

significant accounting policies, with
additlonal guidance addad to the
Standard to explain how an entity can
identify material accounting policy
information with examples of when
accounting policy information is likely
to be material.

assets has been
removed as this

is not considered
material. The
assessment

will be performed
on an annual basis.

IFRS 17 and IFRS 8
Comparative Information

01 January 2023

Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9
= Comparative Information {Amendment
to IFRS 17):

The amendment Is a transition option
relating to comparative information about
financial assets presented on initial
application of IFRS 17. The amendment

is aimed at helping entities to avoid
temporary accounting mismatches
between financial assets and Insurance
contract liabilities, and therefore improve
the usefulness of comparative information
for users of financial statements.

The impact of the
amendment is not
material as IFRS 17
is not applicable

to the group.

IFRS 17 Insurance
contracts

01 January 2023

Insurance contracts:

Insurance contracts combine features

of both a financial Insfrument and a

service contract. In addition, many

insurance contracts generate cash flows
with substantial varisbility over a long
period. To provide useful information

about thase features, IFRS 17:

« combines current measurement of the
future cash flows with recognition of
profit over the period that services are
provided under the contract;

« presents insurance service results
(including presentation of insurance
revenue) separately from insurance
finance income or expenses; and

» requires an entity to make an
accounting policy choice of whether
to recognise all insurance finance
income or axpenses in profit or loss or
to recognise some of that income or
expensas in other comprehensive
income,

The Impact of the
amendment Is not
material as IFRS 17
is not applicable

to the group.
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3.2

Standards and Interpretations not yet effective

The group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have
been published and are mandatory for the company’s accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024 or later perlods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:

Impact Analyzls

impact

Amendment to IFRS 18
- Leases on sale and
lease back

01 January 2024

These amendments Include requirement
for sale and leaseback transactions in

The impact Is not
considered material

IFRS 16 to explain how an entity accouritsas no sale and

for a sale and leaseback after the date
of the transaction. Sale and leaseback
transactions where some or all the lease
payments are variable loase payments
that de not depend on an index or rate
are most likely to be Impacted.

leaseback
transactions have
been entered into
by the group

Amendment to IAS 1 -
Non-current flabilities
with covenanis

01 January 2024

These amendments clarify how conditions
with which an entity must comply within
12 months after the reporting period
affect the classification of a liability.

The amendments also aim to improve
information an entlty provides related

to liabilities subject to these conditions.

The extent of the
disclosure required
will be assessed to
the extent that the
portfolio recourse
debt is still
applicable to the
group

Amendment to IAS 7 and
IFRS 7 - Supplier finance

01 January 2024

These amendments requires disclosure
to enhance the transparency of supplier
finance arrangements and their effects
on an entity's liabilitles, cash flows and
exposure to llquidity risk. The disclosure
requirements are the IASB's response
to investors' concerns that some
companies' supplier finance
arrangements are not sufficiently visible,
hindering investors' analysis.

The impact is not
considered material
as no suppliet
finance arrange-
ments have been
entered into.

Amendments to IAS 21 -
Lack of exchangeability

01 January 2025

An entity is impacted by the amendments
when it has a transaction or an operation
in a foreign currency that is not
exchangeable into another currancy at

a measurement date for a specified
purpose. A currency is exchangeable
when there is an abllity to obtaln the
other currency (with a normal admini-

J?ﬁe impact will be

assessed based on
foreign currency
transactions
entered into during
the financial year.

strative delay), and the transaction would
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Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:

Standards and interpretations not yet effective (continued)

impact Analysis

Impact

take place through a market or exchange
macanism that creates enforceable
riahts and cblizations.

IFRS S$1 Genaral
Requirements for
Disclosure of
Sustainablility Related
Financial Information and
IFRS S2 Climate-related
Disclosures

01 January 2024

IFRS Sustainablility Disclosure Standards
« The International Sustainabliltiy

Standards Board (ISSB) issued its first

2 standarde on 26 June 2023:

- General Requirements for Disclosure
of Sustainability Related Financial
Information (IFRS S1), which is the
core framework for the disclosure of
material information about sustain-
ability-related risks and cpportunities
across an entity's value chain.

- Climate-related Disclosuras (IFRS §2),
which is the first thematic standard,
and ests out raquirements for entities
to disclose information about climate
retated risks and opportunities.

The impact of the
disclosuras required
will be considered
in line with reporting
to the Social and
Ethics Committee.

Ammendment to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7. Classification
and measurements of
financial instruments

01 January 2026

The ammendments are applicable to:

*Dei nition of a financia! liability
setfled through electronic transfer:
*Classification of financial assets
*Disclosures

Tha Impact of the
disclosures required
will be considered

in the preparation

of the annual
financial statements.

IFRS 18 Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial

01 January 2027

IFRS 18 includes requirements for all
entities applying IFRS for the presentation
and disclosure of information in financilal
statements.

The impact of the
disclosures required
will be considered

In the preparation
of the annual
financlal statements.

Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries 01 January 2027
without Public Accountability:

disclosures

IFRS 19 spacifies reduced disclosure Star)
requirements that an eligible entity is
permitted to apply instead of the
disclosure requirements In other IFRS
Accounting.

The impact of the
disclosures required
will be considerad

in the preparation

of the annual
financial statements.
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5. Significant subsidiary

Summarised financial Information on subsidiary

Royal Bafokeng Nation

Development Trust Group
2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Summarlsed statsment of financial position
Current
Assets 10,785,888 10,284,239
Liabilities (1,254 596) (1,362.481)
Total current net assets 9,631,272 8,021,758
Non-current
Assets 44 464,917 41,648,885
Liabilities (5,089,887) (5,202,879)
Total non-current net assets 39,376,030 38,445,906
Net assets 48,906,302 45,367,664
Summarised statement of comprshensive Income
Ravenue {1,456,252) 149,592
Profit before tax 7,445,942 2,002,315
Taxation - (946,102) 140,143
Total comprehensive profit 6,499,840 2,142,458
Summarised cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flow (used in} operations (375,040) {211,239)
Interest paid (148,873) {139,916)
Income tax paid - 366,659 {260,930)
Net cash generated from operating activities (888,572) {612,085)
Net cash generated from Investing activities 29,825 2,871,362
Interest received 825 297 697,793
Dividend received 1,831,702 1,853,900
Net cash used In financing actlvities (2,260,768) {2,307,993)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 462,518) 2,502,977
Cash opening balance 5,252,308 2,767,647
Effects of exchange rate movement on cash balances 87,210 i8,316)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,877,002 5,262,308
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6.1

Financial Instruments

Non-¢urrent financlal assets

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss(FVTPL).

Investment In NEPI Roc

Investment in First Rand

Investment in Big Yellow Group

Enel Option - Adams Solar & Electra
Investment in Stanlib

Investment In Trensaction Capltal
Investment in RB Plats

Investment in Dis-chem Pharmacies
Investmant in ISQ

Option asset in AFF2B

Investment in Bakwena Platinum Corrldors Concessionaire
investment in Discovery

Investment in Momentum Metropolitan
Investment in Global Equity Funds
Investment in All Weather Capital
Investment in Nuco chrome
Investment In Vision Capital

Other financial assets

Total Financial asset at FVTPL

loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

NEPI Rockeastle Ple ("NEPIRoc")

Backaround

Notes

6.1.1
6.1.2
6.1.3
6.1.4
6.1.5
6.1.6
6.1.7
6.1.8
6.1.9
8.1.10
6.1.11
6.1.12
8.1.13
6.1.14
6.1.15
6.1.16
6.1.17
6.1.18

652,315
12,268,812
836,502
192,049
261,837
307,108

1,747 416
400,915
26,529
32,413
3,403,054

1,443,721
162,706
810,542
457,055

82156
23,078,127

531,909
10,367,822
686,487
188,784
268,088
1,273,837
1,568,771
1,636,856
95,460
22,741
37,811
2,921,638
426,601
600,640
150,284
697,168

52277
21,539,145

‘Refer below for detalls of the investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit and

NEPIROCK is a commercial property Investor and developer listed on the Main Board of the,
Johannesburg stock Exchange Limited, Euronext Amsterdam and A2X. NEPIROCK is the premier

owner and operator of shopping centres in Central and Eastern Europe.

During the prior financial year NEPIROCK redomiciled from Isle of Man to the Netherlands and
changed its name io NEPI Rockcastie NV. The number of shares held by the company remain

unchanged.
Proportion of ownership

The percentage shareholding in NEPI Roc Is 0.85% percent (2022: 0.85% percent).
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6.1.1

6.1.2

Financlal Instruments {continued)

NEPI Rockcastle Plc {*"NEPIRoc") {continued)

2023 2022
R'000 R000
Non-current
Opening balance 531,099 547,122
Fair value adjustment 175,294 {15,128}
Return of capltal (54.978) -
Closing balance 652,315 531,999

The investment is classified as financial asset. The investment is measured at fair value using the
closing spot price. The closing price for NEPIROCK was R126.38 (2022:R103.07) per share at
31 December 2023.

The group received distributions of R 54 978 253 (2022: R 35 366 986)

distribution notice, shareholders had the opportunity to elect to receive the distribution in the form of a
capital reductlon, an ordinary cash dividend out of distributable profits or as a return of capltal by way
of an issue of new shares (scrip dividend).

The group elected to receive the distribution in the form of a capital reduction that would be treated as
a return of capital, a return of contributed tax capital and a reduction in base cost for the purpose of
the Income Tax Act.

FirstRand ("FSR")

nd
FirstRand is a portfolio of integrated financial services businesses and offers a universal set of
transactional, lending, Investment and insurance products services.

231 409 917 FSR shares were received as a result of the RMH unbundling in 2020. Subsequent to the
unbundling, the group sold 21.4 mittion FSR shares with 210 099 917 shares remalning in 2020. The
group sold 43.2 million FSR shares in 2021 with 166 899 886 shares remaining in 2022. No FRS shares

ware sold in 2023,

In 2021 financial year 166 825 785 FSR shares were pledged as sacurlty for the Salestalk HoldCo
(Pty) Ltd preference shares and the Royal Bafokeng Holdings Proprietary Limited revolving credit
facility. In the current year, Salestalk HoldCo (Pty} Ltd refinanced the debt and the FSR shares were
released from the security previously held.

The investment is classified as a financial asset. The investment is measured at fair value using the
closing spot price. The closing price for FirstRand was R73.51 (2022:R62.12) at 31 December 2023.
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6.1.3

614

Financlal instruments {continued)

FirstRand (“FSR") (continued)

Proportj ershi
The shareholding in FirstRand was 3% at year-snd.
2023 2022
R'000 R"000
Non-current
Opening balance 10,367,822 10,147,514
Fair value adjustment 1,800,990 220,308
Closing balance 12,268,812 10,367,822

Blg Yellow Group ("BYG"}

Background
During the 2016 financial year, Royal Bafokeng impala Investment Holding Company (Pty) Ltd (a

subsidiary of RBH) made an investment in BYG, a London Stock Exchange listed entity. BYG PLC
is the UK's brand leader in self storage.

Proporti nershi
The percentage shareholding in BYG is 1.9% (2022: 1.8% percent).

Non-current

Opening balance 696,497 1,086,403
Falr value adjustment 47,568 (336,013)
Forelgn currency translatlon differences 85 437 (53.893)
Closing balance 839,502 696,497

The Investment is classified as a financial asset. The investment is measured at falr value using the
closing spot price. The closing price of GBP 12.22 (2022: GBP 11.47) as at 31 December 2023, The
foreign currency translation loss is exchange rate translation differences on the fair value in a foreign
currency (GBP) of BYG which is reported as part of the fair value gain or loss In the income statement.

Ensel Option

Ba nd
The group entered into iwo agreements with ENEL Green Power RSA Proprietary Limited {Enel), the

details of which are below:

Adams Solar

The Group entered into an agreement with Enel and ACI to acquire a stake in Adams Solar Project PV
Twe (RF) Pty Limited (Project Company). RBH through its subsidiary Lisinfo 245 Investments (Pty) Ltd
holds 30% of the project company.
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8.14

Financial Instruments {continued)
Enel Optlon (continued}

The Group's total commitment to the project company is R373,276,345, which will be funded primarily
through loans from the BEE funders, ABSA and Nedbank.

The loans from the BEE funder have been guaranteed by Enel. The group committed R50 million of its
own cash resources towards the project. The funds from the project company will first be utllized to
settle the loans from the BEE funders.

Electra

The Group entered into an agreement with ENEL Green Power RSA Proprietary Limited (Enel) and
Electra Community Investments (ECI) to acquire a 30% stake in Electra Capital (RF) Proprietary
Limited (Project company). The project company was awarded the right to the development,
construction and operations of a renewable energy facllity. RBH through its subsidiary Lisinfo 219
Trading (Pty) Ltd holde 30% cf the project company.

The Group's total commitment to the project company is R371,861,328, which will be funded entirely
through loans from the BEE funders (Nedbank and ABSA). The loans from the BBE funder have been
guaranteed by Enel. RBH will not contribute any of its cash resources towards the project.

Adams Solar and Elecira oplion

The only risk the Group has in the project is the R50 milllon commitment RBH has made to the
Adams Solar project as the funding has been fully guaranteed by Enel. This is insignificant when
locking at the scope and expected retums of the project. In the event that the retums recelved are not
as projected, the BEE funders will call on the guarantees. The RBH Group will lose the RS0 million
investment in the project, but no other company affillated to Group can be called on to make good
any losses. RBH did not contribute any cash resources towards the Electra project. The Electra
funding has also been fully guaranteed by Enel.

Valuation
The fair value of the options is Level 3 on the fair value hlerarchy. The valuation was performed by an

Independent expert using the Monte Carlo technique. Within the valuation the critical inputs are the
spot value, sharaholder loan and BEE funder loan faillty balance. The valuation as at 31 December
2023 of R112.8 million (2022; R84.3 million) and R78.1 miilion (2022: R95.5 million) for Adams Solar
and Electra respectively was determined using the following inputs:

2023 2022

Figures in R'000 Adams Solar Electra Adams Solar Electra

Valuation Date 12/31/2023 12/31/2023 12/31/2022 12/31/2022
Expiry Date 12/31/2028 8/31/2028 12/31/2028 8/31/2028
Spot Value 659,592,233 762 151984 728,698,101 815,791,780
RBH 30% portion of equity value 197 877880 228 645595 218,809,430 244,737,534
Volatility 20.74% 20.97% 27.17% 27.77%
Dividend vield 27.28% 19.51% 12.83% 25.48%
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6.1.4

Financial Instruments (continued)
Enel Option (continued)

re
Adams Solar

Initially, on 31 December 2016 shareholders’ loans with the BEE Co portion equal to R282,758,831
accruing Interest at 24% NACA was in place. This loan has been converted to B-ordinary shares. For
the purpose of this option valuation, the B-ordinary shares are assumed to be In place for the remaining
operational life of the project. The B-ordinary shares will participate in 50.45% of the dividends of
Adams untll 31 December 2028,

Elecira

Initially, on 31 August 2016 shareholders’ loans accrulng interest at 24% NACA was In place. This

loan has been converted to B-ordinary shares in 2018 financial year. This loan has been In place for
the remaining operational life shares are assumed to be in place for the remaining operational life of the
project. The B ordinary shares will participate in 42.88% of the dividends of Electra until 31 August

2028.

Sensitivity analysi
A 1% increase/decrease in the spot value will increase/decrease the option value by R2 million
(2022: R1.7 million) and R2.3 million (2022: R2.4 million) for Adams Solar and Electra respectively.

A 5% increase/decrease in the volatility will increase/decrease the option value by R0.1 million
{2022: R7.2 million) and R1.9 milllon (2022: R2.5 million) for Adams Solar and Electra respectively.

2023 2022

R'000 R’000
Non-current
Opening balance 189,764 308,919
Fair value adjustment 2,285 1118.155)
Closing balance 192,049 189,764
The fair value split of the options is as follows: 192,048 189,764
Adam Solar 112,876 94,282
Electra 79,174 95,482

Investment In Stanllb Infrastructure Private Equity Fund (Pty) Ltd {"Stanllb")

Background

RBH Group Ltd holds 13.5% in Stanlib Private Equity Infrastructure Fund {Pty) Ltd (Stanfib)
incorporated in South Africa. The purpose of the fund Is to carry on business as a long term investor
and to acquire and hold Investments to derive Income and achieve long term appreciation. The total
fund size is R1,188 million. The investmentin Stanlib is carrled at fair value. The fair value of the
investment In Stanlib Is R261.8 million (2022: R269.1 million) (Levei 3) which was determined by fair
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8.1.5

6.1.6

Financlal Instruments {continued)
Investment in Stanlib Private Equity Infrastructure Fund (Pty) Ltd ("Stanlib"} (continued)

valuing a sum-of-the-parts valuations by valuing all the underlying projects based on a discounted
cash flow methodology.

Proportion of ownership
The percentage shareholding in Stanlib is 13.50% (2022: 13.50%).

2023 2022
_ R’000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 269,088 286,458
Falr value adjustment (7.261) (17,360)
Closing balance 261,837 269,098

Transaction Capltal Limited (“TCP”)

Background
Transaction Capital Is an active investor and operator of cradit-orientated alternative assets managed

by experienced entrepreneurial management teams employing a rigorous value-led investment
approach to generate risk-adjusted interest retums & capital appreciation whitst delivering social value.

During the 2021 financial year, the group made an Investment in TCP, a JSE listed entity, by
purchasing 12,000,000 shares in TCP at a price of R21 per share. On 14 January 2021, the TCP
shareholders approved the specific share issue, which resulted the company executing the
subscription agreement by acquiring 12,400,000 shares for R248,000,000 on 15 January 2021.

An additional R500 milllon was invested in the prior financial year.

Proportion of ownership
The percentage shareholding in TCP is 5.1% as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 5.1%)

Non-current

Opening balance 1,273,837 1,088,732
Acquisition of TCP - 500,000
Fair value adjustment {966,731) (324,895)
Closing balance 307,106 1,273,837

The investment is classified as a financial asset. The investment is measured at fair value using the
closing spot price. The closing price was R7.98 (2022:R33.10) at 31 December 2023.
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6.1.7

Financlal instruments (continued)

Royal Bafokeng Platinum Limlited ("RB Plats")

Backaround

RBPlat Is a mid-tier platinum group matals (PGM} producer listed on the JSE which operates
Bafokeng Rasimone Platinum Mine (BRPM) and the Styldrift | mine. As of 21 July 2023 RBPlat
operates as a subsidiary of Impala Platinum Holdings Limited.

The shares in RBPIat are held in tws SPVs within the RBH Group, i.e. Royal Bafokeng Investment
Holding Company Proprietary Limited (RBIH) and Emikaway Propristary Limited (Emikaway).

On & November 2021 Royal Bafokeny Investment Holding Company Proprietary Limited (RBIH), an
SPV within the RBH Group, entered into a sale of shares agresment with Northam Piafinum Limited
{Northam} to sell 93.9 million shares in RBPlat amounting to 32.8% for a purchase consideration of
R17 billion, which purchase consideration would be settied by way of a combination of the issue of
ordinary shares by Northam, upfront cash and deferred consideration. Further, RBIH entered into a
put and call option on the remaining 1.6 million shares in RBPlat, in terms of which RBIH granted
Northam & call option to acguire a further 0.5% of the RBPlat shares from RBIH for a purchase
consideration of R135 per share escalating at 12% nominal annual compounded quarterly (NACQ),
and Northam granted RBIH a put option to require Northam to acquire 0.5% of the RBPlat shares.

Emikaway Proprietary Limited currently holds 7.8 million shares in RBPlat, therefore the Royal
Bafckeng Hoklings group holds 3.3% of the investment in RBPIat at 31 December 2022.

Further to the above, on 3 Dacember 2021, Emikaway entered intc an option and right of first
refusal (ROFR) agreemant with Northam on the 7.8 million shares held in RBPIat. Emikaway granted
Nertham a call option to acquire 4 472 103 RBPlat shares held by Emikaway at R135 per shares

In a 24-month exerclsable period. Concurrently, Northam granted Emikaway a put option to sell

1 891 342 RBPlat shares at R135 per share, The put option is exerclsable from 3 June 2022 until
the expiry date of 3 December 2023,

©On the remaining 3 367 673 RBPlat shares, Emikaway granted Northam a right of first refusal based
on a five-day volume weighted average price (VWAP) purchase price per share. In terms of the
ROFR, which remains in effect until 8 November 2024, if Emikaway wishes to dispose of allor a
portion of the shares, it shall not be entitled to do o, nor shall it agree to do so, unless it first offers
to sell the shares to Northam. No financial instrument has been recognised as these are rights
afforded to Northam.

Emikaway has racognised a derivative asset on the put option recsived from Northam and a
derivative liability on the call option granted to Northam.

On 20 July 2023 Northam released a Stock Exchange News Service (SENS) announcement
confirming that it will be tendering all the shares that it held in RBPlat to Impala Platinum Limited’s
(Implats) mandatory offer of R80 + 0.3 Implats shares. On the basis that Northam would be
tendering all the shares they held in RBPlat, it was agreed that Emikaway and Northam would
terminate the ROFR agreement on the 7.8 milllon shares held by Emikaway In RBPlat.

The value of RBPIlat disclosed below in the prior year is the number of remaining shares (8 513 471)

at 31 December 2022 at the closing price. For the 2023 financial year, no values are disclosed since
the investment was disposed of.
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6.1.7

6.1.8

Financlal instruments (continued)
Royal Bafokeng Platinum Limited ("RB Plats") (continued)

‘o .
The shareholding in RBPlats was 0% at year-end.

2023 2022
R’000 R"000
Non-current
Opening balance 1,668,771 1,487,146
Fair value adjustment {292,063) 81,625
Disposal (1,276,708} -
Closing balance - 1,568,771

The investment was classitied as financial asset at fair value.The closing price for RBPlats was
R164.90 at 31 December 2022.

r j tion
The deferred consideration was settled in 2 tranches, being the 30th of April 2022 by payment of
R4,000,000,000 and the 30th of September 2022 by payment of R1,585,286,843. As from the
8 November 2021, the deferred consideration has been escalated at @ nominal annual rate equal to
12%, calculated on a dafly basls, based on a 365-day year, compounded quarterly in arrears.

Summary of the deferred consideration:

Current

Opening balance - 5,664,246
Defsrred consideration on the disposal of RB Plats shares - -
Interest on the deferred considerafion - 301,632
Payment received - 15,965,878)
Closing balance - - - F

Dischemn Pharmacies Limited {"Dis-Chem")

Background
Dis-Chem i the second-largest retail pharmacy chain based in South Africa with operations within

South Africa, Namibia and Botswana. It was co-founded in 1878 by Ivan and Lynette Salzman and
the group has since grown into a well-known brand amongst South African consumers, with 194
stores currently operational.

The group, through Its SPV Royal Bafokeng Investment Holding Company, acquired an investment
in Dig-Chem for R1.4 billion in 2021.

rtio|
The shareholding in Dis-Chem was 6.6% at year-end.
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6.1.8

6.1.9

6.1.10

Financlal Instruments {(continued)

Dischem Pharmacles Limited ("Dis-Chem") (continued)

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 1,636,956 2,018,730
Fair value adjusiment 110,459 1379,774)
Closing balance 1,747,416 1,636,958

The fair value is determined by reference to the closing price. The closing price for Dis-Chem was
R30.69 at 31 December 2023 (2022: R26.75).

I-Squared Infrastructure Fund 2 (“ISQ")

Background

1SQ Global Infrastructure Fund IIl, L.P. |s a private equity fund operated by | Squared Capital
Advisors (US) Lic and has approximately $2.2 billion in assets. On 30 June 2021 the company,
through its SPV Jenzoprox, signed a partnership agreement to be a fimited partner of the ISQ Global
Infrastructure Fund Ill (ISQ). As per the agreement, Jenzoprox has committed to make aggregate
cash contributions to the fund up to the commitment value of USDS0 million,

Proportion of ownershio
The percentage shareholding in ISQ ie 0.34% as at 31 December 2023

Non-current

Opening balance 95,460 63,066
Fair value adjustment 49,744 4171
Acquisition of ISQ 255,711 28,223
Closing balance —400,515 —38,460

The investment is classified as a financial assat. The investment ls measured at fair value. The falr
value is provided by the fund manager and is determined using a discounted cashflow method for

all the underlying assets in the portfolio.
Option asset In RMI Affillates ("AFF2B") sntered into by Royal Bafokeng RIM (RF) {Pty) Ltd

Summary of the option asset:

Non-current

Opening balance 22,741 21,660
Fair value adjustment 3,787 1,081
Closing balance 26,528 22,041

In the 2021 financial year, the group entered into an empowerment transaction with AFF2B, acquiring
a 30% stake through RIM in the business for a total purchase consideration of R58.53 million. An
upfront payment of R17.66 million was made in cash and the remaining R40.97 million was funded
through a Momentum Metropolitan Life (MML) preference share facility aceruing interest monthly at
prime plus 1.5% expiring on 23 July 2028,
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8.1.10

6.4.11

Financlal Instruments (continued)
Option asset In RMI Affillates ("AFF2B") entered Into by Royal Bafokeng RIM (RF) (Pty) Ltd

RBH receives a 3% (escalating annually at CPI) trickle dividend on the upfront capital invested by
RBH (R17.56 million), whereas the remaining dividends received on the 30% shareholding are used to
gervice the outstanding preference share dabt.

At the expiry date the group may repay the rolled up value of the outstanding preference share debt
and keap the shares that have accrued. Alternatively, they may walk away from the entire structure
hold # ite no value. Thus the structure represents a European call option on the package of shares
with the strike being the rolled up value of the preference share debt. Again this rolled up value is
stochastlc as it is determined materially by the dividend payout rate of AFF2B. Thue, to provide
appropriate valuation of this option, a Monte Carlo valuation technique was applied.

The fair value of the options is Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy. The valuation was performed by an
independent expert using the Monte Carlo technique. Within the valuation the critical inputs are the
spot value, preference share loan balance. The valuation for AFF2B was R26.5 million as at

31 December 2023 (2022: R22 million}. The AFF2B was determined using the

Valuation Date 31/12/2023 34M2/2022
Expiry Date 23/07/2028 23/07/2028
Spot Value 320,772,586 257,915,707
RBH 30% portion of equity value 08,831,776 77,374,712
Volatility 40.73% 38.49%
Dividend yield 7.75% 4.26%

n
A 1% increase/decrease In the spot value will increase/decrease the option value by R525 036

(2022: R361 426) for AFF2B.

A 5% increase/decrease in the spot value will increase/decrease the option value by R2 481 894
(2022 R428 525) for AFF2B.

Bakwena Platinum Corridors Concesslonalre

n
Bakwena Platinum Corridors Concessicnaire operates the N1N4 folled road between Pretoria and
Bela-Bela N1 and Pretoria and Botswana border N4.

Proportion of ownerghip
The percentage shareholding in Bakwena is 0.78% (2022: 0.78%).

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 37,811 42,355
Fair value adjustment 15398 (4 544
Closing balance 32,413 37,811
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6.1.12

8.1.13

8.1.14

Financlal Instruments {continued)

Discovery Limitsd ("Discovery”)

Background

Discovery is a JSE-listed entity that offers a full sulte of insurance, financial and weliness products
services. 23,684,955 Discovery shares wers received as a result of the RMI unbundling In the current
year. The investment is classified as a financial asset. The investment is measured at falr value using
the closing spot price. The closing price for Discovery was R143.68 (2022: R123.35) as at 31 December

2023,

Proportion of ownership
The percentage shareholding In Discovery was 2.52% (2022: 3,6%) as at 31 December 2023.

2023 2022

R'000 R’'000
Non-current
Opening balance 2,921,539 -
Additions - 3,745,085
Fair value adjustment 481515 (823 526)
Closing balance 3,403,054 2,921,539

Momentum Metropolitan Limited ("Momentum”}

Momentum is a financial services group listad on the JSE. 56 796 586 Momentum shares were
recalved as a result of the RMI unbundling In the current year. Subsaquent to the unbundling the
group sold 32 million Momentum shares in 2022. The remaining 24.79m shares were sold in 2023,

The investment is classified as a financlal asset. The investment is measured at falr value using the
closing spot price. The closing for Momentum was R17.20 as at 31 December 2023.

Proportion of ownership
The percentage shareholding in Momentum was 0% as at 31 December 2023.

Non-current

Opening balance 426,501 -

Additions - 948,603

Fair value adjustment 38,304 30,679

Disposal (485,805) 1652,681)
Closing balance - 426,501

Global Equity Funds

Backaround

During the prior financial year the group, through its SPV Royal Bafokeng Automotive Proprietary
Limited, subscribed for shares in various global asset manager funds. The Initial investment was $35
million in 2022 and this was increasead in the current year to total of $66 million which Is aliocated as

follows:
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6.1.14

Financial Instruments (confinued)
Global Equity Funds {continued}

» Metropolis Value Fund, $12 million (2022: $5 million)

- Crosby Street Global Large Cap Fund, $14 million (2022: $8 million)
» Sands Capital Global Growth Fund, $12 milllon {2022: $5 million)

= Virtus SGA Global Fund, $12 milllon {2022: $5 million)

« Lansdowne Development Market, $18 million {2022: $11 million)

Below Is a summary of the funds:
Metropolls Value Fund
UK-based high-conviction global equlty manager whose methodology draws extensively from the

founders' experience building and running successful businesses, particularly past experience from
management consultancy and private company buyouts.

2023 2022

R'000 R'000
Opening halance 89,485 -
Additions 130,407 79,036
Falr value adjustment 4,474 10,448
Foreign exchange gain 47,532 -
Closing balance 271,988 89,486

Sands Capltal Global Growth fund

Sand Capital is an independent, staff-owned investment firm that combines analytical rigour and
creative thinking to identifying high-quality growth businesses.

Opening balance 76,748 -
Additions 130,497 77,844
Fair value adjustmant 27,010 {1,095)
Foreign exchange gain 31,681 -
Closing balance 265,937 76,749

Lansdowne Development Market ("Lansdowne™)

UK-based investment management partnership focused on the developed markets with an ability o
invest up to 10% in emerging markets.

Opening balance 205228 -
Additions 94,576 174,419
Falr value adjustment 40,301 30,809
Foreign exchange gain 25,853 -
Closing balance 365,958 205,228
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6. Financial Instruments {continued)
6.1.14 Global Equity Funds {continued)
Virtus SGA Global Fund

US-based growth equity fund manager speciallsing in managing high-conviction US, global,
intemnational and emerging markets portfolios.

2023 2022

R’000 R000
Opening balance 84,764 -
Additions 132,275 78,895
Fair vaiue ad|ustment 39,741 5,769
Foreign exchange gain 1,618 -
Closing balance 268,399 84,764

Crosby Street Global Large Cap fund

US-based private Investment firm that manages assets across long- anly and long/short equity
strategies that aims to invest in high-quality companies acrose geographies and market

capitalisations.

Opening balance 144,413 -
Additions 94,576 140,119
Fair value adjustment 24,336 4,284
Foreign exchange gain 18,113 -
Closing balance 281,438 144,413

§.1.15 Inveatment In ARl Weather Capltal

In October 2022 Royal Bafokeng Investment Holdings (RBIH) signed an application to participate in

a hedge fund portfolic called the All Weather Capital H4 Market Neutral Retall Hedge Fund (the
portfolio), managed undar All Weather Caplial Proprietary Limited (AWC) as the hedge fund manager.
As per the application, RBIH has indicated that it will make aggregate cash contributions to the

Fund of up to the value of R150 million.

The portfolio Is a product that has the desired properties that will enable the RBH portfolio to generate
enhanced returns from Its excess cash position with limited downside risk while retaining adequate
access to capital, The portfolio has a strong focus on long-term capital appreciation targeting an
absolute return In excess of cash and seeks to exploit investment opportunities unigue to some
specific group of stocks while maintalning a neutral exposure to broad groups of stocks defined, for
example, by sector, industry, market capitallsation, country or region. The portfolio aims to provide
returns with lower volatility and lower drawdowns than the South African equity market.

The Investment is accounted for as an equily Investment at fair value through profit or loss for all the
cash contributions.
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6.1.15

6.1.16

8.1.17

Financial Instruments {continusd)
Investment In All Weather Capital {continued)

Irv informati
The fair value Is not based on observable market data. The fair value is determined using the NAV for
the fund at year-end. The NAV attributable to any class of shares within a fund will be determined by
deducting the share of liabllities of that class from Its share of the assets of the fund. The NAV of
each share of each class will be determinad by dividing the NAV atiributable to the class by the
number of sharee of that class.

2023 2022

R'000 R'000
Opening balance 150,264 -
Additions - 150,000
Felr value adjustment 2,442 264
Closing balance 152,708 160,284

Nuco Chrome Bophuthatswana (Pty) Ltd

Nuce Chrome Bophuthatswana (Pty) Ltd (*Nuco®) Is a private company, which holds prospective and
mining rights on farms located on the Royal Bafokeng Nation's land for minerals as well as precious
metals such as chrome platinum group metals and gold,

The investment in Nuco is classified as investment in associate measured at fair value through profit
or loss. The falr value is under pinned by the chroma are deposit of over 10million tonnes as per the
mining rights and the price offering of chrome. Furthermore, this growth was prompted by being
granted additional mining rights during June 2022 In addition to the initial rights {Kookfontein) which
were granted during September 2016.

Opening balance 697,168 2,173
Fair value adjustment 113,374 684,985
Closing balance 810,542 697.168

Investment in Vislo Caplital

Visio Capital Management is a Johannesburg based investment firm founded In 2003. The Visic team
has been managing bond funds since 2008 when the giobal financial crisis made high-yield markets
extremely attractive.

During the current year, the company, through its SPV, Royal Bafokeng Investment Holding Company,
made a US$25mifllon investment in a Visio-managed US denominated Glebal High Yield Corporate
Bond portfolio. The fund is managed on a segregated mandate by Visio Capital Management and
represents the Gompany's initial allocation to global fixed income.

The investment is accounted for as an equity investment at fair value through profit or loss for all the
cash contributions.
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6. Financlal Instruments (continued)
8.1.17 Investment In Vislo Capltal (continued)

Fair v info n

The fair value Is not based on observable market data. The fair value is determined using the Net
Asset Value for the funds at year-end. The Net Asset Value attributable to any class of Shares within
a Fund will be determined by deducting the share of liabilities of that class from ite share of the assets
of the Fund. The Net Asset Value of each Share of each class will be determined by dividing the Net
Asset Value attributable to the class by the number of Shares of that class.

2023 2022

R'000 R'000
Opening balance - -
Additions 457,055 -
Fair value adjustment . -
Closing balance 457,055 -

8.1.18 Other financial assets

The other financial assets includes the investment in Ethos Mid Market Fund, InfraSaliance, Lango
Real Estate, MTN Zakhelefuthi and YeboYethu(RF) Ltd("YY"). The Investments are classified as
financial assets measured at fair value.

The Group invested in the Ethos mid-market fund. In 2016, Ethos launched an inaugural midmarket
private equity fund. The Fund seeks to make investments of between R100 million and R350 million,
pradominantly in midmarket leveraged buyout transactions. Importantly, the Fund will be BEE-
majority owned and will be able to participate In deals as the BEE Partner.

InfraSalience Ltd Is a UK-domiciled company with interests in various operating entities in the UK,
US and South Africa. The company manufactures chemicals that remove environmentally harmful
emigsions from manufacturing facilities and converts them Into usable chemicals.

YeboYethu (RF) Ltd ("YY") is a South African based special purpose vehicle. YY is ring-fenced
limited specia! purpose vehicle which holds Vodacom Group shares for the benefit of shareholders.
YY is listed on the BBBEE segment of the JSE.

MTN Zakhele Futhi shares were Jocked in for & period of 3 years ("The minimum period") which
ended on 24 November 2019, Restricted trading is allowed during years 4 to 8 years, where after 8
years the shares are no longer restricted. During the prior financial year, the MTN Zakhele Futhi
shares listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange ("JSE") under the JSE empowerment category
on 25 November 2019. The shares will be listed on the JSE for @ minimum of 5 years.

During the prior financial year the group, through its SPV Royal Bafokeng Automotive Proprietary
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8.1.18 Other financial assets (continued)

Limited invested in Lango Real Estate, a real estate company focused on generating sustainable
Investor returns through the acquisition of prime commercial real estate assets in key gateway
cities across the African continent and is domiciled in Mauritius. A vendor loan was used to
finance the Investment in Lango Real Estate Management.

7. Investments in assoclates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss
2023 2022 2023 2022
% holdings % holdings  R'000 R'000
The principat associates which are all listed are;
Eldo Group Holdings {Pty) Ltd ("Eldo") 71 27.90%  27.90% - 18,443
Rand Merchant Bank Holdings Limited 7.2 12.50% 12.50% 114,701 25,200
©OUTSurance Group Limited 7.3 14.20% 14.20% 9,154,662 6,842,134
Northam Platinum Holdings Limited 7.5 8.70% 8.70% 4,830,754 6,438,941
Liquid Telecoms Jersey Holdings Limited 78 7.80% 7.80% 1,895204 2,028,208
Blue Falcon 140 Trading (Pty) Ltd 7.7 2510%  25.10% 207,049 310,548
Hallcore Water {Pty} Ltd 7.8 27.00%  27.00% 56,690 64,496
Windfall 58 Properties {RF) (Pty) Lid 7.9 2510%  25.10% 424 383 317,436
YeboYethu (RF) Limited 7.10 28.56%  28.56% 483,890 559,266
Growthpoint Student Accommodation Holdings ~ 7.11 2497%  28.73% 523,721 650,500
Enviroserv Holdings {Pty) Ltd 7.13 24.50%  24.60% 325,240 285,622
Keg Holding (Pty) Lid 7.14 20.75%  20.75% 1,748,080 1620683
Investments in associates at FVTPL 19,855,178 19,201,657
Jolint ventures
The principal joint ventures are:
Distributed Power Africa Assat Holding Ltd 712 60.00%  60.00% 6,503 8,712
Total 19,861,676 19,208,389
2023 2022 2023 2022
% holdings % holdings  R'000 R'000
Dipalopalo Consortium (Pty) Ltd* 28.00%  2B8.00% 20,857 8,148
JCD Sub Saharan Africa (Pty) Ltd 30.00%  30.00% - 605
Roval Investment Managers (Pty) Ltd* 50,00% 50.00% 39,103 58,042
Mogs {Pty) Ltd - restated™ 51.00% &51.00% 1,1868795 535,143
1,248,555 601,935
Total Investments in associates and JoInt ventures at FVTPL 21,110,231 19,810,305
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7.2

Investments In associates and Joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss {continued)
Eldo Group Holdings (Pty) Ltd {("Eldo")

Background
ELDO Is a group of energy management companies that specialize In smart metering software, energy

efficient and generation technologies, as well as energy management services. They coffer energy
management solutions across residential, commercial, retail and Industrial applications, packaged to
achieve aoptimal energy and money savings with optional funding model.

Proportion of ownership
Thole Investment Holding Company (Pty) Ltd acquired a 10% equity stake in Eldo Group Holdings (Pty}

Ltd ("Eldo") for R10 million. Tholo further participated in a rights issue in Eldo for R2.856 million
bringing its effactive Interest in Eldo to 14.36% as at 31 December 2020. In 2021 the effective
shareholding was increased to 27.80% due to the re-organisation of Eldos capital structure and an
injection on additional equity capital by Tholo. The investment is classified as associate. The
investment is measured at fair value. The fair value is not based on observable market data.
Subsequent {o year-snd, Eldo was placed in business rescue. The falr value has been written off o nil.

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 18,443 15,732
Additions - 2,719
Fair value adjustment 18,443) (B}
Closing balance - 18,443

Rand Merchant Bank Holdings Limited ("RMH")

Background

RMH is a JSE-listed investment holding company investing in disruptive and entrepreneurial financial
services business. It holds a 100% interest in RMH Property Proprietary Limited. In 2020 RMH
distributed its FirstRand sharsholdings to RMH shareholders.

P tion of hi
The total number of ordinary shares held in RMH Is 176 462 802 (2022: 176 462 802) which is below
the 20% threshold for an Investment to be treated as an associate. However, significant influence Is
exercised through Board representation.

The Investment is measured at fair value using the closing spot price. The investment in RMH was
trading at R0.85 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: R0.54).
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7.4

Investments in assoclates and Joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Rand Merchant Bank Holdings Limited ("RMH")

2023 2022
R'000 R’000
Non-current
Opening balance 95,200 264,694
Fair value adjustment 19,411 (169,404,
Closing balance 114,701 95,290
OUTsurance Group Limited
Beckaground

OUTsurance Group Limited is a leading Insurance provider listed on the JSE. OUTsurance specialises
in property and casualty insurance, activities are focused on the South african and Australian insurance

markets.

In the prior year, OUTsurance unbundled the shares in diacovery Limited and Momentum Maetropolltan
Holdings Limited. The unbundled investments in Discovery and Momentum are disclosed below.

ortion of rahi
The investment Is classified as an assoclate. Significant influence is exerclsed through board
representation. The investment is measured at fair value using the cloaing spot price. The closing
price for OUTsurance was R42.20 (2022: RMI: R31.54) at 31 December 2023.

Non-current

Opening balance 6,842,134 9,798,960
Fair value adjustment 2312 528 (2,956.826)
Closing balance 9,164,662 6,842,134

Northam Platinum Holdings Limited {("Northam™)

Backgroun

Northam is an independent integrated PGM producer listed on the JSE. The primary operations are
centred on their two wholly owned mines, Zondereinde and Booysendal, and the additional
metallurgical operations at Zonderelnde including a smelter and base metals removat plant.

In the 2021 financlal year,the group, through its SPV Royal Bafokeng Investment Holding Company,
acquired an investment in Northam in exchange for the partial disposal of its shares in RBPlat.

Proportion of ownership
The total number of ordinary shares held in Northam is 34 398 725 shares which is below the 20%

threshold for an associate, Significant influence is exercised through the ability to appoint a board
representative. The closing price for Northam was R140.43 (2022: R187.18) at 31 December 2023.
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1.5

Investments In assoclates and joint ventures at falr value through profit or loss (continued)

Northam Platinum Holdings Limited ("Northam") (continued)

2023 2022
R'000 R000
Non-current
Opening balance 6,438,941 7,208,742
Fair value adjustmeant 1,608,187 i767,801)
Closing balance 4830,754 6,438,941

Liquld Telecomsa Jersey Holdings Limited (“LTJ"}

u
LTJ provides dats, voice, cloud and IP services in eastern, central and southern Africa. The company
supplies fibre-optic, satsliite and international carrier services to mobile network operators, ISP's and
businesses of various sizes. Its producis and services Include carrler services, such as connectivity
services, to subsea cable systems. The investment is classified as an associate. Significant influence
is exsrcised through board representation. The Investment is measured at fair value.

Isiion informati
The Group, through its SPV Lisinfo 213 {RF) Proprietary Limited, has invested in Liquid Telecoms
Jersey Holdings {LTJ) through two instruments:
1. ordinary shares that have a value protection of the anti-embarrassment price (AEP); and

2, convertible preference shares.

The Group inltially invested in Liquid Telecoms Holdings (LTH) through two tranches In 2017:

« the first tranche of R1 blllion was invested through Liquid Telecoms Holdings SA (l.e. LTHSA) to
acquire 100% of the equlty in Neotel in February 2017, resulting in RBH having an effective 30%
shareholding; and

= the second tranche was the flip-up of RBH's equity in LTHSA to LTH (Le. group) as well as a top-up
aquity contribution of USD22.2 million to acquire further equity, which resulted in RBH's shareholding

in LTH of 10,34%.

As part of the second tranche, The Group agread with LTH and the reet of the shareholders a concept
of an AEP.

In the 2021 financial year LTH had an opportunity to further expand its data centre sirategy when an
opportunity arose to acquire the Standard Bank Samrand Data Centre (Samrand DC). Unfortunately,
due to the funding restrictions at LTH it was not possible to raise funding at LTH level and a
workaround was gought:

« A solution wae an LTH company reorganisation in which the fibre (i.e. traditional) business and the
data centre business (i.e. ADC) would be separated into two businesses which would fall under a new
hekiing company, Liquid Telecommunications Jersey Holdings Limited (LTJ). This would assist with
raising funding at ADC level to implement the data centre strategy and acquire the Samrand DC.

« As part of the reorganisation The Group and the rest of the shareholders “flipped up” to the new
holding company.

« Eurthermore, LTJ then raised capital through convertible preference shares to be able to fund the
equity for the Samrand DC. The Group participated in the rights issue subscribing for USD10 miliion.
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7.5

Investments in assoclates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Liquid Teletoms Jersey Holdings Limited (“LTJ") (continued)

It Is the group's policy for derivativas embedded in other financial instruments not to be separated f the
hybrid contract contains a host that is a financlal asset within the scope of IFRS 9 and that the IFRS 9
classification and measurement is applied to the entire instrument.

As the investment in LTJ is within the scope of IFRS 8 the call option (floor) is not separatad from the
host contract (Investment In LTH), the entire instrument is classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, The company determines the equity value to assess whether the equity value s below or
above the call option to determine the valuation technique used for the entire instrument. If the equity
value is below the fioor the entire instrument is measured at the AEF (floor), meaning the call optlon is
in the money and If the equity value is above the AEP {floor) the entire instrument is measured at the
equity value, meaning the call option is out of the money. As IFRS 9 does not require the instrument

to be separated, the derivative (in the money call option) was not measured separately. However, the
features of the derivative must be disclosed; refer below for the features of the derivative.

The percentage shareholding in LTH is 7.8% (2022 7.8%), which is below the 20% threshold for an
investment to be treated as an associate. However, significant influence is exerclsed through Board

representation.

The LTH shares have been pledged as security for the RMB preference shares that were issued for the
acqulsition of LTH.

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 2,028,208 2,283,315
Fair value adjustments 133 093 1265.017)
Closing balance 1,895,205 2,028,208

Valuation

Fair value Information

The Group has two different Instruments, (1) the ordinary shares and {2) the convertible preference
shares, in LTJ post tha filp-up and the rights issue.

Having tonsidered the two instruments, the valuation of the ordinary shares and the convertible
praference shares do not have to be split and, as such, cne valuation was performed for both the
equity and preference share component (as the preference shares will be treated as equity).

The preferance share component does not enjoy the same protection as the other equity shares.
The Group (1) continues to carry its equity component at the higher of the AEP and fair value and (2)
carries the prefarence share component at the greater of face value or equity value on a fully
converted basis as there's a true-up if LTJ issues any shares below the conversion price.

The Group has been carrying the valuation of LTJ at the AEP per the agreements entered into in 2017,
but will not enjoy the AEP protection from 28 February 2022 and going forward.
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7.8

Investments In assoclates and joint ventures at falr value through profit or loss (continued)
Liquld Telecoms Jersey Holdings Limited ("LTJ"} (continued)

In order to determine fair value, the group has performed a valuation based on a discounted cash flows
(DCF) methadology while also performing a market approach (l.e. EBITDA multiple) valuation to agsess
reasonability of the DCF approach.

Equity component
The investment in LTJ was valued using the DCF aand market pproach as at 31 December 2023. In

the prior year the investment in LTJ was valued using the DCF approach.

DCF and market approach methodologies:

« The DCF valuation of the equity component was R1.72 billlon (2022: R1.82 billion) with the market
approach valuation being R1.67 billion (2022: R2.45 killion).

« The overall impact is a decrease of R1286.8 million for the year primarily due to a challenging
operating environment which was slightly off-set by the depreciation of the ZAR relative to the USD.

The key unobservable inputs, together with the weighted average range of probabilities, are as follows:

Welghted average range of
Figures in % High Low
Price escalation
CPl 4.35% 3.90%
Margin 5.50% 5.50%

The value of the preference shares ranges from R201.6 million to R207.7 million based on the different
valuation methedologies. The preference share value would be carried at face value based on the DCF

valuation as it is above the initial investment.

The average value is R204.7 millicn which implies & 21,8% increase on R168.1 million Inltially invested
{i.e. USD10 millilon at USD/ZAR of R16.81). The average value ie above the face value In USD.

Blue Falcon 140 Trading (Pty} Ltd ('Blue Falcon")

Background

The company Is a renewable energy company with the purpose of producing wind energy (Gouda Wind
Facllity, a 135.2 MW wind plant) and consequently supplying of electricity to Eskom, The investment

is classified ag an asscciate. The investment is measured at fair value.

Proportion of ownership

The number of shares held by the Group through its subsidiary Celanex (Pty) Ltd in Blue Falcon are
54 468 which represents 25.1% of the Blue Falcon's equity. Significant influence is exercised through
board representation.

2023 2022
R’000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balancs 310,548 287,307
Fair value galn (13,498 23,151
End of year 207,049 310,548
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7.7

Investments In assoclates and Joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Blue Falcon 140 Trading (Pty) Ltd ('Blue Falcon™)

The directors valued the stake [n Blue Falcon of 25.10% at R287 million at 31 December 2023
(2022: R311 million).

Valuation

The fair value of the investment is Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of Blue Falcon
is not based on observable market data. The fair value was determined using the discounted cash
fiow method. Future cash flows were discounted at an appropriate discount rate. The key
unobservable inputs are as follows:

Valuation Date 12/31/2023 12/31/2022
Discount rate - based on cost of equity 13.76% 14.00%
Discount rate applied for lack of marketabllity (Liquidity discount) 10.00% 10.00%

The cash flow forecast Is based on expected dividends extracted from the projects company
financlal modei in terms of the shareholders agreement. The forecast period Is 31 December 2018
to 31 December 2035, using a 6 months period cash flows. The cash flow forecast is for the fixed
period of the project thus no terminal year is applicable.

Hallcore Water

Backaround

Hallcore Water is a company that develops and operates ground water resources in order to provide
access to fresh water daily to communities, mines, agriculturel businesses as wetl as commercial
and Industrial companies. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the company acquired a 30%
equity investment In Hallcore Water for R51 750 000.

During the prior financial year the shareholding was diluted due to Hall Core’s acqulsition of Blue Dot
Water , which resulted in an additional shareholder in the Hall Core structure.

Proportion of ownership

The number of shares held by the group through its subsidiary Royal Bafokeng Astrapak (Pty} Ltd
in Hallcore Water represents 30% of the equity. Significant influence is exercised through board
representation.

2023 2022
R"000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 64,496 58,249
Fair value adjustment 4,8086) 6,247
Closing balance 59, 64,496
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7. Investments In assoclates and Joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
7.8 Windfall 58 Properties (RF) {(Pty) Ltd ("Windfall")

Background
The company is a renewable energy company with the purpose of preducing solar energy {Sishen

Solar PV Facility, a 74 MW solar PV plant) and consequently supplying electricity to Eskom. The
investment is classified as an associate. The investment is measured &t fair value.

i ownershi
The number of shares held by the Group through its subsidiary Celanex (Pty) Ltd in Windfall are
251 which represents 25.1% of the Windfall's equity. Significant influence is exercised through

board representation.

2023 2022
R’000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 317,438 337,658
Fair value adjustment 106,948 (20,122
Closing balance 424,384 317,436

The directors valued the staka in Windfall of 25.10% at R424.3 million at 31 December 2023
{2022: R317.4 million).

Valuation
The falr value of the investment Is Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy. The fair valua of Windfall Is not
based on observable market data. The fair value was determined using the discounted cash flow

method. Future cash flows were discounted at an appropriate discount rate.

Valuation Date 12/31/2023 12/31/2022
Discount rate - based on cost of equity 14.14% 14.00%
Discount rate applied for lack of marketability (Liquidity discount) 10.00% 10.00%

The cash flow forecast is based on expected dividends extracted from the projects company financial
model in terms of the shareholders agreement. The forecast period is 31 December 2019 to

31 December 2034, using a 8 menths period cash flows. The cash flow forecast is for the fixed period
of the project thus no terminal year is applicable.

7.9 YeboYethu (RF) Limited {"YY")

Fou
Yebo Yethu (RF) Limted engages in the business of acquiring and holding shares in Vodacom Group.
YY is a ring-fenced limited special purpose vehicle whose sole purpose is to buy and hold Vodacom
SA ordinary shares and Vodacom SA A shares for the benefit of shareholders. YY is listed on the

B-BBEE segment of the JSE.
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7.10

Investments in associates and Joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
YeboYethu (RF) Limited ("YY") (continued)

Proporti own i
The number of shares held by the group through Its subsidiary Royal Bafokeng Resources (Pty) Ltd is
28,6% of YeboYethu (RF) Limited 's equity. Significant influence is exercised through board

represantation.

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 559,266 771,031
Falr value adjustment (75,676 (211,785)
Closing balance 483,880 559,266

The investment Is classified as an associate. The investment Is measured at fair value using the
closing price. The closing price for YY was R32.00 (2022: R37.00) at 31 December 2023.

Growthpolnt Student Accommodation Holdings ("GSAH")

ro
During the 2021 financial year the group, through its SPV, Royal Bafokeng Management Services
Proprietary Limited subscribed for 50 000 A class shares (equivalent to 35% of total ordinary A class
shares at subscription) in Growthpoint Student Accommedation Holdings (previously Joburg Stay
Proprietary Limited (Joburg Stay)) at subscription price of R10 per A class share which is equivalent
to R500 million. GSAH is an unlisted student accommodation REIT founded by Growthpoint and
seeded by third-party investors including Royal Bafokeng Management Services.

GSAH owns an initial portfalio comprising seven student accommodation properties which were
acquired mainly from the Feenstra Group.

The current portfolio serves the major universities, being the University of Pretoria, the University of
Johannesburg, the University of Witwatersrand and the University of Cape Town. During October 2023
GSAH raised additional equity of R340 millicn from Vulindlela Holdings and Eskom Pension and
Provident Fund through subsciption of A class shares, resulting in the group A class shares reducing to
24.97%.

Non-current

Opening balance 550,500 500,000
Fair value adjustment 26,779) 50,500
Closing balance 523,721 350,500

The investment Is classified as an associate. The investment is measured at fair value. The fair value
is determined using the net asset value (NAV) per share calculation from Growthpoint Manco. The
main elements of the NAV calculation are: (1) the value of the property assets within the portfolio
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7. Investments In assoclates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
710  Growthpoint Student Accommodation Holdings ("GSAH") {continued)
which are independently valued by registered valuers and (2) the third-party senior debt held.

711 Dlstributed Power Africa Asset Holdings Limited

Background

Distributed Power Africa Asset Holdings Limited (DPA) Is a market leader in innovative solar energy
solutions. They have operations in Kenya, South Africa and Zimbabwe. Part of the Cassava
Tachnologles Group of Companies, DPA supplies commercial and industrial customers with efficient,
green solar energy instaliations without an initial capltal outlay. The company, through its SPV
Jenzoprox Proprietary Limited, has committed equity to acquire a 60% equity stake in DPA AssetCo.
The remalning 40% is held by Econet Energy Limited (EEL).

The maln business objective of DPA AssetCo Is to acquire renewable energy power projects
developed by DPA DevCo, a wholly owned subsidiary of EEL. DevCa is responsible for the origination
of power lease agreements (PLAS) with customers, development of the projects, and performing
operations and maintenance (O&M) activities relating to the projects at agreed fees, over the tenure
of the contracts with customers. AssetCo then acquires completed projects from DevCo at an agreed
price.

i
The Group holds 80% of the shares in DPA. The investment is a jolnt venture as joint control is

exercised.
2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 6712 6,669
Fair value adjustment 208) {1,857
Closing balance a{m G:'Iﬂ)'

The investment is measured at fair value. The fair value of DPA is not based on observable market
data. The fair value was determined using the sum of parts valuation methodology.

7.42  Enviroserv Holdings (Pty} Ltd

Bagkground

EnviroServ is a leading integrated waste management and recycling business operating in South
Africa and selective economies in sub-Saharan Africa. It collects, analyses, treats and disposes of
hazardous and general waste to treatment and disposal sites, with operafions in South Africa,
Mozamblque and Uganda.

During the 2022 financial period the group, through Royal Bafokeng Infrastructure Proprietary Limited
(RB Astrapak), subscribed for 24.5% in Umzwilili Environmental Solutions Proprietary Limited

(Bitco), a consortium developed between Suez Group (Suez), African Infrastructure Investment-
Managers (AlIM) and RB Astrapak Infrastructure Investments, formed io implement the EnviroServ
Holdco transaction. Subsaquently, a 100% sharehclding in EnviroServ Holdco was purchased by Bitco.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures at falr value through profit or loss (continued)

Enviroserv Holdings (Pty) Ltd (continued)

During the current year the group subscribed for an additional 480 ghares in EnviroServ at a value of
RS54 B8O 000 maintalning its 24.5% interest. The group has entered into a local shareholder contribution
agreement with EnviroServ Holdco in which a local contribution fee |e payable on a quarterly basis. A
contribution fes financial assat has been recognised at fair value through profit or loss in the current
financial year.

The investment is classified as an associate. The Investment is measured at fair value, The group
exarcises significant influence through board participaticn.

2023 2022
R"000 R'000
Neon-current
Opening balance 285,622 -
Acquisition of shares 54,880 285,622

Fair value adjustment ;15,2621 -
Closing balance s .

—

The fair vaius is not based on observable market data. The fair value is determined as the transaction
price because the transaction was concluded at arm’s length close to the company's financial
year-end.

KEG Holdings (Pty) Ltd

KEG Holdings Limited ia the leading vertically integrated LPG business in East Africa. It imports

¢. 300 000 MT of LPG annually through its terminal and distributes it through its market-leading
downstream business. Africa Oil and Gas Company ({AGOL) and Proto Energy (Proto) are the key
operational entities In KEG Holdings Limited.

During the prior year the group, through its SPV K2021425492 Proprietary Limited, acquired a 20.75%
sharsholding in KEG Holdings Limited, a Mauritian holding company for liquefied petroleum gas
(LPG) Integrated assets located mainly in Kenya. The business of KEG is the operation of a LPG
business {including, but not limlted to, import, export, wholesale, distribution, cylinder manufacturing
and marketing activities, and excluding production) in East Africa.

The transaction was settiad by the group as follows:
« Internal cash resources of US$99.56 million.
» Vendor loan notes (VLN) issued to the sellers, of which the group's portion was U8$20.8 million
(Offshore financing):
- VLN1: Initial value of US$8.3 million to be funded by debt and dividend recapitalisation applied.
The VLN1 (including accrued interest) was settied in November 2022;
- VLNZ: Initial value of US$12.5 million is a performance-based instrument that Incure interest of
15% per annum payable at an exit event.
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7.14

7.18

7.16

7.17

7.18

Investments in assoclates and Joint ventures at falr value through profit or loss (continued)

KEG Holdings {Pty) Ltd (continued)

2023 2022

R'000 R'000
Non-current
Opening balance 1,680,683 -
Acquisition of shares - 1,806,404
Fair value adjustments 55,387 27,668
Digposal - (143,388)
Closing balance 1,748,080 1,690,683

The vendor loan note used to finance the investment in KEG Is disclosed in Note 18,

Dipalopalo Consortlum (Pty)Ltd

Dipalopalc was formed to enter into a public-private partnership (PPP) with the Department of Statistic
South Africa for the establishment of head office accommodation.

JCD Sub Saharan Africa (Pty} Ltd ("JCD SSA")

JOD S8A is one of the leading outdoor advertising companies in Africa, operating in 14 countrles
across the African continent. The group, through its subsldlary Jenzotype (Pty) Ltd acquired a 30%
interest in JCD SSA in 2015.

Royal investment Managers {Pty) Ltd

Royal Investment Managers (RIM) is an investment holding company that acqulres stakes in
either existing or new asset management firms with a strong and unrelenting focus on diversity.

Mogs (Pty) Ltd ("MOGS")
MOGS is a pan-African leader in the oil and gas infrastructure and mining services sectors.
Leopard Guernsey BK JV LP

The Leopard Guemnsey partnership was reglstered as a limited partnarship in Guernsey. The
partnership has been established to invest in real estate in the UK and Western Europe.
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Investments In assoclates and Joint ventures at falr value through profit or loss (continued)

Movement In equity accounted investments balance

2023 2022
R'000 R000
Opening balance 601,936 567,085
Share of post acquisition profits * 270,284 74,238
Post acquisition dividends (5,945) {6,400)
Impalment 605} (32988
865,870 601,936
# Share of profit is after tax and minorily interest of equity accounted investments.
Summary of share of profit or loss
Dipalopale Consortium (Pty) Ltd 12,511 {1,514)
JCD Sub Saharan Africa (Pty) Lid - 838
Royal Investment Managers (Pty) Ltd {12,984} (8,659)
Mogs (Pty) Ltd — 270,766 83473
270,284 74,238
Loan recelvable
Leopard Guernsey BK JV LP* - (38
Total 270,284 72,203

* During the current year, the accumulatad losses has exceeded both the cost of the equity investment
as well as the loan raceivabie. The loan raceivable has thus been limited to a net Investment of Rnil,

Summary of the impalrment in associates
JCD Sub Saharan Africa (Pty) Ltd 1605)

(32.988)

Total impairments {60B)

(32,988)
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8.1

Trade and other recelvables

Current trade receivables

Trade receivables

Less: impalrment provision

Trade recelvables net

Other recelvables

Related party lcans and receivables
Prepaid expenses

Deposits

Tax/\VAT refundable

Less: non-current trade receivables (refer below)
Total trade and other recelvables

Current related party loans and recelvables

Loans

Loan to Dipalopalo Consortlum (Pty) Ltd
Loan to JCD Sub Saharan Africa (Pty) Ltd
Recelvables

Blg Yellow Group dividend recelvable
Other receivables

Closing balance

Total related party loans and receivables

2023 2022

R'000 R'000
130,008 80,827
(8.185) (7,383;
120,813 73,444
330 386
377,380 378,866
4,782 2,063
785 785
56.752 6,842
560,852 482,376
560,882 462,376
38,820 48,427
131,886 163,366
14,712 4,488
162,183 162,587
377,380 378,866
377,380 378,866

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate the fair value. The loans bear no
interest and have no fixed repayment terms except the Dipalopalo loan which bears interest at 13%

per annum which is repayable after service commencement date.

The equity accounted accumulated losses of Leopard Guernsey BK JV LP have thus exceeded both
the cost of the equity investment as well as the loan receivable. The loan receivable has thus been
limited to a net investment of Rnil, and thie has resulted in a reversal of impairment loss which has

been allocated to the loan receivable.
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8.3

Trade and other recelvables (continuad)

Summary of the reversal of impalrment in assoclates

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Leopard Guemnsey BK JV LP - (208 740,
Total reversal of impalrments - {208,740}
Finance lease recelvable
Maturity analysis of lease payments recelvable
- within one year 281 -
- within 2nd to 5th year inclusive 297 -
Total undiscounted amounts recelvable 578 -
Unguaranteed residual values
Gross Investment in the leases 678 -
Less:uneamed interest income (54} -
Present value of minimum lease payments recevable 524 -
Less:loss allowance - -
Net Investment In the lease 524 -
Non-Current assets 283 -
Current 241 -
524 -

The group entered into finance teasing arrangements for a portion of the RBH office building. The
average lease terms are two years (2022: three years) and the average effective lending rate was

10% (2022:9%).

Reconclllation of significant changes In net investment in ieases”

Opening balance - 75
Interest income 13 -
Derecegnition and impairment 841 -
Receipts during the year 1330 (79}
Closing balance 524 -

Other Information

Interest income recognised on net investment In the leases 13

* Values per signed RBH 2023 annual financial statements.
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10.

Deferred Income tax

Deferred taxation

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year is as follows:

Opening balance
Derecognition
Reclassification

Statement of profit or loss charge

Change in tax rate
Closing balance
Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liablilty

Deferred Income tax llabllities

2023

Opening balance

Charge to income statement
Reclassificatlon
Derecognltion

Closaing balance

2022

Opening balance

Charge to income statement
Reclassification

Change in tax rate
Derecognition

Closing balance

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Restated*
(3,7986,244) {3,867,190)
(361,918) (63,481)
2,568 180,285
(199,586) 269,185
- 111,752
{4,355,178) (3,369,469)
303,005 299,208
(4,574,271) (3,668,766)
Fair value Other
and deferred tax
Impalrment llabllilee  Amortisation Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
3,563,355 215,003 17,884 3,796,244
727,668 - - 727,668
- 8,657 - 6,657
43,702 - - 43,702
4,334,725 221,860 17,884 4,574,271
3,886,656 42 - 3,886,698
{268,933} 29 10,908 (258,926)
{1,047) 86,638 6,976 92,667
{115,055) - - (115,055)
63,481 - - 63,481
3,564,102 886,780 17,884 3,668,766
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10. Deferred Income tax {continued)

Falr value Other
and deferred
Provislons [mpalrment Tax loss tax asset Total
Deferred Income tax  R'000 R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000
assetls
2023
Opening balance {224) 76,148 33,702 (19,347) 60,280
Charge to income
statement - 528,082 - - 528,082
Derecognition - (318,213) - - {318,213)
Reclassification - 2,568 - - 2,568
Closing balance (224) 288,585 33,702 {19,347) 302,717
Fair value Other
and deferred
Provisions Impairment Tax loss tax asset Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R’'000 R'000
2022
Opening balance {224) {13,930) 33,662 - 18,508
Charge to Income
statement - 8,451 1,808 10,259
Change in tax rate - (3,302) - - {3,302)
Reclassification - 84,931 40 187 863 272 834
Closing balance (224) 76,149 33,702 189,671 299,298
2023 2022
R milllion R million
The unrecognised deferred tax assets amount fo:
Royal Bafokeng Tholo Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd 470 470
Royal Bafokeng Holdings (Pty} Ltd 27 25
Jenzotype (Pty) Lid 77 71
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11.

1141

11.2

Derlvatives

RBPIat Options entered Into by Emlkaway Proprietary Limited (Emikaway)

Option asset
2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Opening balance 24,428 103,436
Termination of put option {24,428) -
Fair value adjustment - (75,008
RB Plat put option - 24,428

On 3 December 2021 Emikaway entered into an option agreement with Northam whereby Northam
granted Emikaway a put option to sell 1 891 342 RBPlat shares held by Emlkaway at an option strike
price of R135 per share. The put option is exercisable from 3 June 2022 until the expiry date of 3
December 2023.

Optlon liabllity

Opening balance {99,230) {182,371)
Termination of Call option 99,230 -
Fair value adjustment - 83 141

RB Plat call option - {99,230)

On 3 December 2021 Emikaway entered into an option agreement with Northam whereby Emikaway
granted Northam a call option to buy 4,472,103 RBPlat shares held by Emikaway at an option strike
price of R135 per share. The call option Is exercisable from 3 December 2021 for a period of 24
months.

On 20 July 2023, Northam Platinum Limited ("Northam") released a SENS announcement confirming
that they will be tendering all the shares that they hold in Royal Bafokeng Platinum Limited ("RBPlats”)
to Impala Platinum Limited’s ("Implats”) Mandatory Offer of RS0 + 0.3 Implats shares. On the basis that
Northam would be tendering all the shares they held in RB Plats, it was agreed that Emikaway and
Northam would terminate the Option and Right of First Refusal ("ROFR") Agreement on the 7.8 million
shares heid by Emikaway in RBPlats. As such, a Termination Agreement was concluded between
Emikaway and Northam on 20 July 2023,

RBPIat Options entered Into by Royal Bafokeng Investment Holding Company {RBIH)

Option asset

Opening balance 21,308 82,453
Termination of Put option {21,308) -
Fair value adjustment - (71.145;
RB Plat put option - 21,308
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1.

11.2

12.

Derlivatives (continued)
RBPlat Options entered into by Royal Bafokeng Investment Holding Company (RBIH) {continued)

On 8 November 2021 an SPV of RBH, Royal Bafokeng {nvestment Holding Company (RBIH), entered
into an option agreement with Northam whereby Northam granted RBIH a put option to sell 1 673 685
RBPIat shares held by RBIH at an option strike price of R135 per share. The put option is exercisable
from 3 May 2022 until the expiry date of 8 November 2023,

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Option llability
Opening balance (37,258) {69,400)
Termination of call option 37,256 -
Fair value adjustment = 32,144
RB Plat call option - (37,258)

On 8 November 2021 RBIH entered into an option agreement with Northam whereby RBIH granted
Northam & call option to buy 1 673 695 RBPlat shares at an option strike price of R135 per share.
The call option Is exercisable from 19 November 2021 for a period of 24 months.

On 20 July 2023, Northam Platinum Limited ("Northam") released a SENS announcement confirming
that they will be tendering all the shares that they hold in Royal Bafokeng Platinum Limited ("RBPlats")
to Impala Platinum Limited's ("Implats") Mandatory Offer of R80 + 0.3 implats shares. On the basis
that Northam would be tendering all the shares they held in RB Plats, it was agreed that Royal
Bafokeng Investment Holding Company and Northam would terminate the Option and Right of First
Refusal ("ROFR") Agreement on the 1.7m shares held by Royal Bafokeng Investment Helding
Company in RBPlats. As such, a termination Agreement was concluded between Royal Bafokeng
Investment Holding Company and Northam on 20 July 2023.

Restated
Total Derlvative put options - 45,736
Total Derlvative call options - {136,486)

Current Income tax assets and llabllity
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset when the entity has a legally enforceable right to

set off current assets against current tax liabilities and intends elther to settle on a net basis, to
realise the asset and settle the liabllity simultanecusly.

82



Docusign Envelope ID: 131A0B97-B628-487B-A2DF-DD677320DAF3

ROYAL BAFOKENG NATION (ADMINISTRATION) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12,

13.

Current income tax assets and llabliity (continued)

2023 2022

R'000 R'000
Amounts unpaid at the beginning of year 1,203 12,075
QOver / under provision (17,212) {822)
Current year charge- per income statement (362,387) (253,445)
Tax paid per the cash flow statement 366,659 198,694
Translations of foreign cperations - 43,418
Accrued interest 3,472) 294
As previously reported i15.209) 214
Prepald and llability - Restated {15,200 214
Current income tax liability {20,103) (8,215}
Current income tax asset 4694 8429
Net tax por balance shoet {15,209} 214
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Petty cash 248 180
Cash and cash equivalents 7219822 7.064 691

7,220,168 7,064,851
Bank overdraft - 6

The cash and ¢ash equivalents in the current year are denominated in South African Rand, except
for the USD and GBP foreign denominated accounts.

The carrying value of the amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to short-
term maturity of these financial assets. There are no cash and equivalents pladged as security and
no restrictions exist on cash and cash equivalents.

Maximum Utilised Unutilised
R’000 R'000 R'000
Banking facilities of the Group
2023
Revolving credit facility lenders
Revolving credit facility 2,000,000 = 2,000,000
Banking facilitles of the Group
2022
Revolving credit facliity lenders
Revolving credit facility 2,000,000 - 2,000,000

During the 2017 financial year, the Revolving Credit Facliity (RCF) that Central Lake Trading 342
(Pty) Ltd (a subsidiary of RBH) held with Rand Merchant Bank, was refinanced and settled. A new
R2 billion RCF was raised by RBH with the lenders being Standard Bank, Rand Merchant Bank,
ABSA and Nedbank. The RCF incurs interest at JIBAR plus a margin of 1.86% (2022: 1.85%) and
has a maturity of 5§ October 2026,
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14. Cash Investments

The cash investment includes cash held in fixed investment of R 2,914 billion (2022: R 2,520 billion)
and investment in Stanlib at fair value through profit and loss of R 232 million (2022: R 200 million).

Investments
Stanlib money market
Short-term bank deposits

185. Inventories
Consumable goods

2023 2022

R'000 R'000
232,217 169,884
2814 403 2,520.187
3,146,620 2,720,081
3,363 3,383

All Inventories are carried at cost. There has been no inventory written down to net realisable value.

16. Employee benefits
16.1  Short-term benefit

Current
Leave pay and bonus provision

18.2 Long Term Incentive Scheme

A Long Term Incentive Scheme (LT!) liability of R67.1 mitlion (2022: R60.6 million) is a

66,477

47,846

notlonal plan In that participants will not be entitied to acquire actual or representative shares, but
will enable a participant to receive a future cash amount subject to the conditions of the plan.

During the 2023 financial year, all conditional shares and SARs were settled, therefore the LTI scheme

only has NCOs remaining In flight.

Employee beneflts liabilities

Reconclliation
2023

Long-term incentive scheme

2022
Long-term incentive scheme

Opening Current-year Pald during .Closing

balance expense the year balance
60,634 45,508 (39,019) 67,123
50,634 45,508 {35,019) 67,123
57,905 40,097 {(37,368) 60,634
57,906 40,097 (37,368) 60,634
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16.2

17.

Long Term Incentlve Scheme {continued)

Activity on Awards outstanding
Conditional awards SARs
Woelghted Waelghted
Number average Number average
of shares share price of shares option price

For the year ended 31 December 2023
At January 2023 25,314 440 180,797 179
Exercised - 435 (133,130) -
Forfeited - - (59,123) -
Expired - - (19,893 -
At 31 December 2023 25,314 440 (31,349 179
For the year ended 31 December 2022
At January 2022 49,154 261 302,943 91
Exercised {22,952} 435 (133,130) -
Forfeited {888) - (69,123) -
Expired - - (19,883) =
At 31 December 2022 25314 440 180,797 179
Borrowings

2023 2022

Notes R'000 R'000
Restated

Non-current
Redeemable preference shares 18.1 1,090,736 2,087,750
Lango Vendor Loan 18.2 - 10,023
KEG Vendor Loan 18.3 66,923 89,380

1,157,659 2,187,153
Current
Loan from Impala* - 30,000
Redeemable preference shares 18.1 17,845 20,201
Related party loan** 7,752 9,951

25,697 69,152

Total Borrowings 1,183,356 2,256,306
Effective interest rate 12% T

* The Ioan is non-interest bearing and is repayable on demand.

**The Soul City loan shall: rank pari passti, be repaid as and when the board of directors defermines
that they shall be repaid, be repald pro rata to each other and shall not bear interest. The directors
shall repay the loans with any amounts received from Blue Falcon and Windfall,
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17.

171

Borrowings (continued)

Maturity analysis

Due within 1 year

Due within 2 to 5 years
Due thereafter

The carrying amount and the fair value of the non-current borrowings are as follows:

Notes
Non-current
Redeemable preference shares  16.1
Lango Vendor Loan 18.2
KEG Vendor Loan 18.3

Redeemable preference shares

2023

Non-current

Balance at 1 January 2022
Prefarence shares redeemed in RBH
Finance costs

2023
Current
Balance at 1 January 2022

Preference shares redeemed/accrued dividend paid

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Restated
25,807 69,162
1,090,736 2,087,750
66,023 99 403
1,183,366 2,256,306
Carrying value Fair vaiue
2023 2022 2023 2022
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
1,080,736 2,087,750 1,080,736 2,087,750
- 10,023 - 10,023
66.923 89,380 66.923 89,380
1,157,659 2,187,153 1,167,669 2,187,153
Preference |DC preference
shares Total
R'000 R'000
2,087,750 2,087,750
{1,000,010) {1,000,010)
131,198 131,198
1,218,938 1,218,938
26,202 29,202
(139,462) (139.462)
(110,260) (110,260)
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17.

171

17.2

Borrowings {continued)

Redeemable prafersnce shares (continued)

Preference
shares Total
R'000 R'000
2022
Non-current
Balance at 1 January 2022 3,088,900 4,077,508
Preference shares redesmed In RBH {1,000,010) (1,000,010)
Transaction costs {1,140) (2,375)
2,087,750 3,075,183
2022
Current
Balance at 1 January 2021 9,313 9,313
Accrued preference dividend / dividend accrual 144,028 144,028
Preference shares redeemed/accrued dividend pald (124,139)  (124,138)
29,202 29,202
Preference ghares

The B preference shares are repayable on 22 September 2027 and accrue Interest at 67% of prime.
During the current financial year RBH, through its SPV Salestalk Holdco, veluntarily redeemed the A
preference shares, entered into a refinacing agreement with one of the lenders, FirstRand,acting
through its RMB division to issue B preference shares.The interest rate was also amended from 69%
of prime to 87 % of prime.. The amendment agreement was effective from 22 September 2022.

The preference shares are secured by investments in the following fellow subsidiaries through a

financial guarantee:
» Royal Bafokeng Investment Holding Company Proprietary Limited;
» Salestalk 268 Proprietary Limited;

Previously Lisinfo 222 Proprietary Limited was an obligor for the redeemable preference shares. In the
current year Lisinfo 222 Proprietary Limited resigned as an obligor when the preference shares where
redeemed as part of their refinance.

Lango Vendor Loan

In 2022 Royal Bafokeng Automotive, acquired a 10% stake in Lango Manco for $700,000 through
vendor financing with Lango at 7% naca. Mance Is responsible for providing the daily management and
advisory services of Lango and receives the management fee as consideration. The loan is serviced by
70% of dividends received on the group’s 10% shareholding, while the remaining 30% flow as a trickle
dividend to the group. Once the loan Is repaid, the group will receive a 100% of It's share when
dividends are paid.
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17.

17.2

173

18.

Borrowings (continued)
Lango Vendor Loan (continued)

It is the intention of Lango to Intemalise Manco, and when this occurs, the group Is required to pay
conditional amount in addition to settling the vendor {oan. This conditional amount is estimated to be
equal to § 2,007,768 on 29 December 2023 and accrues interest at 7% naca. This structure is European
in nature, with the rolled up vendor ican being stochastic since it is determined materially by the dividend
payout rate of Lango. Thus, to provide appropriate valuation of this derivative, the Monte Carlo valuation
technique was used. During the current year, the Lango option asset and the vendor loan note, were

reclassified as an Option asset.

KEG Vendor Loan

The vendor loan note was used to finance an investment in KEG Holdings. Vendor Loan note 1 was
settled during the current year.

Financlal lease liablilties and right of use assets

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
Minimum lease payments due
-within one year 5,088 5,554
-in second to fifth year inclusive 5,909 465
10,867 6,019
Less: future finance charges 1.051) 1309
Present value of minimum lease payments 9,946 5,710
Present value of minimum lease payments due
-within one year 5,209 5,288
-in second to fifth year inclusive 4737 422
9,946 5,710
Non-current llabilities 4,737 422
Current liabilities 5209 5288
Total 8,946 5,710

The group has a total of R3 170 756 (2022: R2 454 618) of non-lease components not included in

the lease liabilities. These relate to the non-lease components and variable leass payments that wil be
included in expenses when incurred.The lease term was 1 year 10 months years and the average
effective borrowing rate was 10.05% (2022: 9.11%), with the lease liabllity balance being R9 948 838
RO 946 838 (2022; R5 708 313).The effective borrowing rate was revised due to the lease
modification which took place during the current financial year,

The borrowing rate is based on the 2023 3-Months JIBAR closing rate of 8.40% and a margin of
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18.

Financial lease liabllitles and right of use assets {continued)

1.85%. Interast rates are fixed at the contract date and/or [ease modification date.The lease escalates
at 7% p.a. and no arrangements have been entered info for contingent rent.

Details pertalning to leasing arrangements, where the company Is the lesses, are presented below.

2023 2022
R'000 R"000

Net carrying amounts of right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets are as follows:

Buildings 9,586 5,234

Depreciation recognised on right-of-use assets

Depreciation recognised on each class of right-of-use assets is presented below. It includes
depreciation which has been expensed In the total depreciation charge in profit or loss.

Bullding (4.488) (5,204)
Right-of-use assets

Opening balance 5,234 8,071

Depraciation (4.488) {5,204)
Lease modification 8,838 4,367

alance at the end of the year 9,586 5,234
Other Disclosures
Notional finance costs on lease liabilities 211 228
Expenses on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
included in operating expenses 885 840
Variable lease payments not included In the measurement of lease
llabilities included in operating expenses 2,466 2,221
Non-lease components not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities included in operating expenses 246 608
Total cash outflow from lease liabilities including notional finance co 5442 6,112

At 31 December 2023 the group is committed to R884 662 (2022: R840 266) for short-term leagses and
low-value leases.

Lease llabilities

Lease llabilities have been Included in the financial liabillties line item on the statement of financial
position.
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18.

19.

2.

Financial lease llabllities and right of use assets (continued)

Future cash outfiows not reflected In lease labllities

The group has a total of R3 170 756 (2022: R2 454 618) and R897 734 (2022: R1 244 580), including
VAT, future cash outflows not reflected in the lease liabilitles. These relate to non-lease components
and variable Isase payments that will be included In expenses when incurred.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Other payables
Financial liabllitles

Accruais

Vat liabllities

Deposits

Deferred income
Non-financial llabllitles

Current
Revaenue
Revenue recognition and measurement

Sale of products
Royalty income
Dividends income
Defarred royalty income
Investment revenue
Other revenue

Impairment of financlal assets
Impairment loss

Impairment loss for equity accounted investments
Total Impalrments

90

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
97,041 687,203
1,666 12,391
98,707 79,684
9,000 13,897
744 38
12 12
5,761 7,760
15,5617 )
114.224 101.189
45,226 38,452
185,942 170,979
1,578,138 6,555,669
2,404,935 2,158,060
- 149,592
266,302 92 601
4,449,541 9,166,363
605 (32,988
{605) (32,988)
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23.

Other Income

Cther income
Amortisation of deferred income

Other gains

Gains from financial assets at falr value through profit and loss
Proflt on sale of associate

Foreign currency translation gains

Other losses
Loss on sale of associate

Net loss

Net finance cost

Finance {cost)

Interest paid - Borrowings

Noticnal Interest on deferred royalty income
Interest pald - Other

Finance income

Interest received from the banks

Interest received from joint venture partner
Interest received - Other

Net finance {cost)

21

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
330,171 271,630
1.024 1.024
331,195 272,654
2,646,336 695,322
- 660
352,132 183,243
2,998,468 879,234
(51,317) _ (6,153,848)
(51,317)  (6,153,948)
2,947,151 (5,274,714)
(135,183) (152,236)
(2.002,260)  {1,755,304)
(11.938) (11,876)
(2,149,370) _ (1,919,506)
270,514 23,388
14,009 9,049
557,429 533,774
841,952 567,111
(1,307,418)  (1,352,394)
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24, Income tax expense
2023 2022
R'000 R’000

Current tax
South African 364,793 244 308
Forelgn 1,774 3,676
Under / {Over) provision 13,845 4,151
Deferred tax
Statement of profit or loss charge 548,853 (396,496)
Withholding tax 16,737 3,119

946,102 {141,248)
Tax rate reconclliation
Net profit before tax 5,179,322 1,726,546
Tax rate percentage 27% 28%
Tax at standard rate 1,398,417 620,401
Non-deductible expenditure 534,105 173,287
Under/(over} provision of tax In prior year 13,389 4,053
Non-taxable income {1,267,571) (827,871}
Profits taxed at CGT rates 134,352 27,150
Changes in tax rate - {132,268)
Tax on equity accounted samings {69,408) (68,840)
Withholding tax* 16,737 8,175
Taxable interest not included in income statement 2,066 -
Derecognition of deffered tax {192,716} -
Donatlon (1,620) -
Section 12H allowances (502) -
Tax loss utilised (9,967) {1,588)
Deferred tax not raised * 388,520 58,254

* Withholding tax relates to securifies transfer tax paid on the redemption of the preference shares in

the current year.

* Deferrad lax not raised relates to movements on deferred lax assets which are nof considered

recoverable and is made up of:

Lisinfo 222 Investments {Pty) Lid

Jenzotype {Pty} Ltd

Royal Bafokeng Automotive (Pty)Ltd

Royal Bafokeng Management Services (Pty) Lid
Platinum Stars FC (Pty) Ltd

Moumo Integrated Development {Pty) Ltd

Royal Bafokeng Natlon Development Trust
Royal Bafokeng Sports {Pty) Ltd

Cross Point Trading 67 (Pty) Ltd
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28.1

Operating loss s stated after charging the following, amongst others:

Expenses
Depreclation.
Impairment of assets
Legal fees
Professional fees
Corparate office expenses
Auditors remuneration
Audit fees
Audit fees - other services
Operating lease rental
Bad debt write-off
Repairs and maintenance
Net foreign exchange
Realised foreign exchange
Unrealised foreign exchange
Employee benefits(note 16.1)
Educational expenses
Water expenses
Executives, directors and trustee’s remuneration

Employee benefits

Selaries and wages

Incentive bonus

Leave provision

Staff fringe benefits

Provision far long-term benefite

Commitments

Leopard Guernsey BK JV LP ("Leopard Guernsey")

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
(78,437) (75,240)"
(15,688) (17,468)
{101,953) (62,733)
(173,075) (112,349)
(12.728) (18,784
(12,728) (16,784)
(4,003) 2,882
(2,439) (1,508)
(119,497) (88,601)
(352, 132) (183,242)
(352,122) (205,807)
- 22 565
(481,366) (380,847)
(50,048) (56,855)
(181,811) {110,148)
(68,897) (58,686)
(370,763) (303,119)
(33,319) (34,535)
(18,596) (1,267)
(7.770) (1,620)
(50,918) (40,007)
(481,366) (380,647)

Zenprop UK and Royal Bafokeng Holdings (RBH) have established an exclusive partnership to pursue
property investment opportunities in the UK and continental Europe through a separate vehicle Leopard
Guernsey. The group holds 50% in Leopard Guernsey. Leopard Guemsey was established in Guernsey

and its principal place of business is Guernsey. (Refer to Note B).

The group committed GBP50 million to Laopard Guernsey. As at 31 December 2023, GBP 48.9 million

(2022: GBP 49.9 million) had been drawn.
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27.

271

21.2

Commitments {continued)

I-Squared Infrastructure Fund 2 (“ISQ")

iSQ is an Independent global infrastructure investment manager focusing on projects in the energy,
utllities, telecom and transport industry in the Americas, Europe and Asia. I1SQ Global Infrastructure
Fund lIl is a closed private equity fund managed by | Squared Capital Advisors, LLC.

On 30 June 2021, The group committed $50 million to ISQ. As at 31 December 2023, $19.6 million had
been drawn, and the remalning undrawn commitment amounts to $30.4 million.

Related party disclosure
Refer note 8 for related party receivables and note 18 for related party payables.
Executives

Refer to note 2 of the Supreme Council report for a full list of Council members. The following were
Executive Committee members of Royal Bafokeng Nation (Administration) during the financial year:

Kgosl Leruo Molotlegi Kgosi/Chalrman

Bothata Molotlegi Ambassador/Strategic Relations

Bashi Makgale Director Operations

Dr Kebalepile Mokgethi Health & Safety Executive and RBA Managing Director

Executlve's remuneration

2023 2022
R'000 R000
Short-term employee beneflis
Supreme councll emoluments 32,280 30,646
Executive management emoluments 36,617 15,253
68,807 45,899
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28.1

Deferred Income

Defarred royalty income

2023 2022
RrR'000 R'000
Impala Holdings Limited
Opening balance 6,241,356 6,644,022
Notional interest recognised 2,002,269 1,755,394
Amortisation (2,404,035) (2,158,060)
5,838,690 6,241,366
Non-current liabilities 5,435,800 5,838,656
Current liabilities 402,700 402,700
5,838,690 6,241,356

The Impala Holdings Limited royaity income relates to an advance payment on all royalties due to the
REN on the Notarlal Mineral Lease K5986/03LM in respect of the period between 1 July 2007 and the

last day of the lease period.
The lease period ends 30 June 2038.

Per the agreement the royalty income accrues on a straight-line basis over the lease pariod. Deferred
income is therefore recognised on a stralght-line basls to reflect the substance of the agreement.

Deferred grant Income

Department of Trade and Industry

Opening balance 18,829 19,853
Amortisation {1,024) (1,024)
17,805 18,829

The deferred income relates to a grant received from Department of Trade and Industry in 2011
amounting to R 28,084,838. The grant has been amortised on straight-line basis to reflect the

substance of the agreement.
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2941

Cash generated from operations

Proflt before tax

Reversal of impairment loss

impairment loss on investments

Interest income

Loss / (Profit) on sale of interest in associates
Foreign exchange gains

Loss on scrapping of assets

Other gains

Cther losses

Depreciation

STT

Deferrad income amortisation

Dividends received

Share of (profit) / losses from equity accounted Invest
SARS interest

IFRS 2/IAS 19 adjustment

Interest expenses

Defarred royalties

Operating cash before working capltal changes

Change In working capital

- (Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables
- Increase in inventory

- Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables

Net cash used In operating activitles

Net debt reconclliation

21
23

22
22
22

22
20

23
20

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt

for each of the perlods presented.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash investments

Borrowings repayable within one year
Borrowings repayable after one year
Net debt

96

2023 2022
R'000 R'000
6,179,322 1,728,244
(277,287) (126,477)
805 32,068
(841,952) {550,396)
51,317 (669)
(352,132) (184,827)
16 4
(2,462,008} (664,995)
- 6,077,230
78,437 75,687
2,514 -
(1,024) {1,024)
(1,578,136} (6,555,669)
(270,284) (36,138)
- (135)
50,918 -
2,149,370 1,919,605
(2,404,935) (2,158,080)
(675,259) (474,732)
{84,770) (32,238
{98,274} 2,482
(30) (506)
13,534 (34,194)
(760,029) (523,452)
7,220,168 7,064,851
3,148,620 2,720,081
(25,697) (69,152)
{1.157,658) (2,187,153)
9,183,432 7,528,627
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29.1

30.1

30.3

Cash generated from operatlons (continued)

Net debt reconclliation (continued)

Borrowings Borrowlings
Cashand repayable repayable

cash within after
Investments equivalents one year one yoar Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Balance at 1 January 2023 2,720,081 7,064,851 (69,152) (2,187,153) 7,528,627

Cash flows - 156,317 - - 155,317
Interest accrued - - - -
Other non-cash movements

Balance at 31 December 2023 m_mmm

Balance at 1 January 2022 2,085631 3,773,703 (51,355) (3,075183) 2,732,796
Cash flows 634,450 - 8,313 888,030 1,531,793
Interest accrued - - (28,202} - {29,202)
Other non-cash movements 2

Balance at 31 December 2022

Events after the reporting period
Capltal contribution made to Asin Partners Il LP

RBH, through its SPV, Royal Bafokeng Investment Holding Company Proprietary Limited, made a
capital contribution of US$3,3 million (R82,7 million) to Asia Partners Il LP on 18 January 2024. The
total commitment to Asia Pertners Il LP is $15 million.

Asla Partners Il LP focuses on making equity Investments [n high-growth technology and technology
ensbled busineseas in Asia, with a particular focus on Southeast Asia. The Limited Partners of The
Partnership have an obligation to make Capital Contributions o enable The Partnership te make
investments in naw Portfolio Companles and to pay is obligations. Each Limited Partner Is required to
make Capital Contributions by The due date when notice is given.

Transaction Caplital (TCP) unbundling of WeBuyCars

On 30 January 2024 the board of TCP released a SENS announcement to advisa shareholders that
TCP will unbundie all the shares that it holds in WeBuyCars. The unbundling will be implemented by
way of a pro rata distribution in specle of the WeBuyCars shares held by TCP on the relevant
dietribution date followed by a listing of WeBuyCars shares.

RBH, through its SPV Royal Bafokeng Resources Proprietary Limited, will receive 12 575 867 shares
in WeBuyCars. The unbundling will be completed on 16 April 2024,

Eldo business rescue proceedings

On 13 March 2024 the board of Elkdo unanimously resolved that the company voluntarly commence
with business rescue proceedings immediately and that it be placed under supervigion in terms of
section 128(1) of the Companies Act.

97



Docusign Envelope ID: 131A0B97-B628-487B-A2DF-DD677320DAF3

ROYAL BAFOKENG NATION (ADMINISTRATION) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30.

304

30.5

30.7

30.8

Events after the reporting period{continued)

Eldo business rescue proceadings {continued)
During 2023 Eldo was negatively impacted by the loss of a major contract held via a joint arrangement.

This has been accounted for as an adjusting event by RBH Group, through Its SPV Royal Bafokeng
Resources (Pty) Ltd, and the value of Eldo has been fully written off.

Towerco Bldco Proprietary Limited

Subsequent to year-end RBH Group, through its SPV Royal Bafokeng Infrastructure Investments
Proprietary Limited, acquired a 30% minority stake in Towerco Bldco Proprietary Limited with the
balance cwned by an Actis-led consortium.

On 20 March 2024 Towerco Bidco entered into a sale agreement with Telkom, pursuant to which
Towerco Bidco will acquire from Telkom all the issued shares of, and all or part of the claims of,

Switfnet SOC Limited.

Towerco Bldco Proprietary Limited is an entity incorporated for the purposes of acquiring the tower
portfalio of Telkom,Swiftnet. This is an adjusting event.

Additional Investment in NEP1 Rockcastle

Following RBH Board approval In June 2024, RBH, through its SPV, Lisinfo 222 Proprietary Limited,
made an additional investment to increase the allocation in NEPI Rockcastle by a further R500m.
The purchase of the final tranche of shares was concluded on 18 September 2024,

Disposal of Investment in FirstRand

RBH, through its {SPV) Salestalk 268 Proprietary Limited, disposed of 21.5 million shares in FSR

for a total consideration of R1.58 billion. This was to implement the mandate to reduce
concentration risk of FlrstRand in the RBH Portfollo. The disposal of the final tranche of shares was

concluded on 19 June 2024.

Subscription of the Northam Solar PV Project

Following RBH Board approval, RBH, through its SPV, Royal Bafokeng Infrastructure Investments
(RBII) implemented the subscription of shares in the Northam Solar PV Project for an amount of

R82.94 million. The purchase of the shares was concluded on 21 August 2024, which resuited in
RBII owning a 34% shareholding.

Additional subscription following KEG capital call

Following a capital call from KEG Holdings Limited (KEG), RBH, through its SPV, K20214254982
Proprietary Limited subscribed for additional shares in the company for an amount of
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30.

30.8

31.

Events after the reporting period {continued)

Additional subscription following KEG capital call (continued)

USD 8.57million. The subscription was concluded on 1 August 2024. The shareholding in
KEG remained the same at 20.75% as all other shareholders of KEG subscribed at the

same proportion to their shareholding.
Financlal Instruments

Categorles of financial Instruments

Financial assets

2023

Assets per balance sheet

Other financial assets

Investments In associates at FVTPL
Trade and other receivables (excludes
VAT, prepaild, deposits)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash Investments

2022

Assets per balance sheet

Other financiat assels

investments in associates at FVTPL
Trade and other recelvables (excludes
{VAT, prepaid, deposits)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash Investments

Notes

13
14

13
14

Financlal Financlal
assets at fair asgefls at
value through amortised
profit and loss cost Total
R"000 R’000 R'000
23,078,127 - 23,078,127
21,110,231 - 21,110,231
- 498,523 498,523
- 7,220,168 7,220,168
- 3,148,620 3,148,620
44,188,358 10,865,311 55,053,669
21,539,145 - 21,539,145
18,208,369 - 19,208,369
- 452,696 452,696
- 7,064,851 7.064,851
- 2,720,081 2,720,081
40,747,514 10,237,628 50,985,142
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3.

Financial Instruments {continuad}

Categorles of financlal Instruments (continued)

Financlal liabllities Notes

2023

Liabllitles per balance sheet

Borrowings 18

Trade and other payables (excludes

VAT, deposits, deferred income

and accruals) 20

Lease liabilities 19

Bank overdraft 14
Notes

2022

Liabiiitles per balance sheet

Borrowings 18

Trade and other payables (excludes 20

VAT, deposits, deferred income and accruals)

Lease liabilities 19

Bank overdraft 14

100

Financial llabHIth Financial
atfair value  llabllities
through  at amortised
profit and loss cost Total
R'000 R'000 R’000
- 1,183,356 1,183,358
- 98,707 98,707
8,848 - 2,046
9,946 1,282,063 1,292,009
Financlal liabllitle Financlal
at falr value fiabilitles
through  at amortised
profit and loss cost Total
R'000 R’000 R'000
- 2,256,306 2,256,305
- 79,684 79,684
5710 - 5,710
- 3] 5]
5,710 2,335,995 2,341,705
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32.

3241

Financial risk management

Liquidity risk

2023
Non-current borrowings
Current borrowings

Trade and other payables

Financial lease fiability

2022
Non-current borrowings
Current borrowings

Trade and other payables

Financial lease liability

Due within Due within  Due within Due
1 year 1tfo2year 2to Syears thereafter Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
- - 1,080,736 66,923 1,157,659
25,697 - - - 25,697
114,224 - - 114,224
5,209 4737 - - 9,946
145,130 4,737 1,050,736 66,923 1,307,524
Due within  Due within Due within
1 year 1to 2 year 2to § years Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
- 2,087,750 95,403 2,187,153
- - - 68,152
- - - 101,189
422 - - 5,710
422 2,087,750 99,403 2,363,202

Redeemable preferance shares and RCF

Financi ntee

RBH Group through its SPV Salestalk Holdco, entered Into an agreement with RMB on 22 September
2022 to refinance its outstanding llabllity of R 2 088 890 000 for the orlginal preference shares. Upon
refinance, Salestalk Holdco was discharged from the financial liability and released from any financial

obligation In terms of the 2017 preference shares amended Common Terms Agreement.

Salestalk Holdco’s obligations under the new preference shares and RBH's obligations under the new
RCF are guaranteed by RBH, Royal Bafokeng Investment Helding Company Proprietary Limited and
Salestalk 268 Proprietary Limited {collectively the “obligors”®).

The funding structure provides for certain financial covenants that need to be maintained. Should the
terms of the funding agreement be breached and the issuer of the preference shares or the borrower of
the RCF fail to pay, the obligors will be required to repay the preference shares and the RCF
outstanding balance. The finance agreements provide for a process to be followed in the event that
thera is a breach of the covenants and the mechanisms to remedy the breach.

The financial covenants contained in the new agreement were for RBH to maintain a:

» R5bn NAV;

» listed asset cover ratio of 2.25:1; and
= gpecified listed asset cover ratio of 1.00:1.

101



Docusign Envelope ID: 131A0B97-B628-487B-A2DF-DD677320DAF3

ROYAL BAFOKENG NATION (ADMINISTRATION) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

32, Finanelal risk management (continuad)
321 Liquidity risk {continued}

The financlal covenants stipulated in the agreements are as follows:

Specified listed
Listed assets asset
cover ratlo cover ratio

Discussion Triggers 1.25 275
Default Triggers 2.25 1.00
As at 31 December 2023 the financial covenants were as follows:
Financial covenants 36.00 22.00
As at 31 December 2022 the financial covenants were as follows:
Flnancial covenants 18.52 9.56

Valugtion .

The financial guarantee is valued by considering the price that the issuer would demand for accepting
the guarantee obligation. This was estimated using a probability adjusted discounted cash fiow
analysis. The technique looks at the probability of default by Salestaik Holdco Proprietary Limited

(SHC) and loss In the event of default.

The valuation was estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation; this simulates the porifolio value over the
maturity of the SHC preference shares. If a default event occurs the simulation calculates a
recoverable value based on an average portfolio value over a 100-day period following default. The
loss in the default events is the difference between the recoverable value and debt.

According to the Monte Carlo simulation the loss in the default event is Rnil, as in all default events
the recovery value exceeds the value of the debt (in the default events SHC is always able to repay
the debt without the financial guarantors). The financial guarantes liabllity as at 31 December 2023 is
Rnil for all the financial guarantors listed above,

32.2 Creditrisk

Due to the fact the trade receivables are monitored differently by each subsidiary, management of
credit risk disclosure has been disclosed on a subsidiary by subsidiary basis. Refer below for the
summary:
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32. Financlal risk management {continued)

322  Credit risk {(continued)

Due to the fact the frade recaivables are monitored differently by each subsidiary, management of
credit risk disclosure has been disclosed on a subsidiary by subsidiary basis. Refer below for the

summary:

Summary of trade and other recelvables*
TJET
Current related party loans

Total current trade recelvables

Total trade and other racelvables

* Excludes VAT and propaid expenses.

2023 2022

R’000 R’000
- 511
611,558 612,533
611,558 613,044
611,558 613,044

Credit risk management has been disclosed for the materlal subsidiaries below:

32.2.1 RBH and its SPVs

[rade receivables

The credit risk exposure for Royal Bafokeng Holdings and its SPVs on trade receivables Is not
considered material as relates mostly to loans advanced to related entities.

32.3 Market risk

32.3.1 Forelgn exchange risk

The net carrying amounts, in forelgn currency, of the above exposure was as follows:

Financlal llabllities

2023 2022
Investment Curmrency R'000 R'000
Leopard Guemsey GBP 1,048 17,577
Big Yellow Group GBP 36,036 33,824
InfraSalience usD - 1,000
j-Squarad Global Infrastructure Fund USD 21,932 5,614
KEG Holdings Limited usD 91,858 94,172
Glcbal Equity Funds usD 78,978 35,323

103



Docusign Envelope ID: 131A0B97-B628-487B-A2DF-DD677320DAF3

ROYAL BAFOKENG NATION (ADMINISTRATION) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stataments

32. Financlal risk management (continued)

32.3.2 Interest rate risk

Fluctuations In Interest rates Impact on the long-term loans and preference shares, which result in
Interest rate risk. The impact of the change in the interest is indicated below:

2023 2022
R000 R’000
Financlal llabilities
Variable interest rate borrowings (Cash flow interest rate rlsk) 1,108,681 2,116,952

rate sensgitivity analysis
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would increase (decrease) future
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This assumes that all variables in particular
foreign currency rates remain constant,

The table below show the shows the analysis of the increase In the interest rate by 1%.

Profitloss
_ Increase in Decrease In
Balance at Interest rate  Interest rate

year end variable varlable
R'000 R’000 R°000
31 December 2023
Variable interest rate borrowings - Sensitivity analysis 1,108,681 (11,087) 11,087
31 December 2022
Variable Interest rate borrowings - Sensitivity analysis 3,084,496 (30,845) 30,845

32,3.3 Price risk

The table below summarises the Impact of increases or decreases of the ALSI on the Group's equity
and profit for the year. The analysis is based on assumptions that equity indexes had increased or
decreased by 100 basis points with all other variables held constant and all the Group's equity
instruments moved according to histaric correlation with the index,

Equity movements
Increase by Decrease by
100 basls 100 basls
Index Name points points

2023

JSE J300 ALSI 329,625 (329,625)
2022

JSE J300 ALSI 325,446 (325,448)
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32. Financial risk management {continued)
32.3.3 Price risk (continued)

The table below summarises the impact of increases or decreases of the FTSE 100 on the Group's
equity and profit for the year. The analysis is based on assumptions that equity indexes had increased
or decreased by 100 basls points with all other variables held constant and all the Group's equity
instruments moved according to historic correlation with the index.

Equity movements
Increase by Decrease by
100 basis 100 basls
Index Name points points

2023

LSE FTSE100 FTSE 8,395 (8,395)
2022

LSE FTSE100 FTSE 6,965 (6,965)

Available-for-sale reserves and profit or loss will increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on equity
securities classified as available-for-sale investment and investments held at falr value through profit or

loss.
33. Falr value estimation
Level 1 Lavel 3 Total
Notes R'000 R'000 R'000
2023
Financlal assets at FVTPL 78&8 33,810,710 8,763,323 42,574,033
FInancial liability 20 - B,946 9,946
Cash investmenis 16 3,146,620 - 3,146,620
2022
Financlal assets at FVTPL 7&8 23,731,835 3,805,308 27,337,141
Financial liability 20 - 5,710 5,710
Cash investments 16 2,720,081 - 2,720,081
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34.

34.1

Materlal direct subslidiaries
Subsidiaries
Entity

Subsidlarles

Royal Bafokeng Nation Development Trust
Royal Bafokeng Holdings (Pty) Ltd
Crosspolnt Trading (Pty) Ltd

Lebone Il College NFC

Platinum Stars FC (Pty) Ltd

Royal Bafokeng Insfitute NPC

Royal Bafokeng Sporte (Pty} Ltd

Royal Bafckeng Nation Platinum Province BBBEE Trust
Royal Bafokeng Enterprise Development
Moumo Integrated Development (Pty) Ltd
Bafokeng Civil Works (Pty) Ltd

Struthio (Pty) Ltd

Kitsong Schools of Royal Bafokeng NPC
Dewdrops Property (Pty) Ltd
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Ownership interest

2023

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

2022

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
0%
100%
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